
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, December 05, 2022 - 5:00 PM

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. Call Public Mee2ng to Order

II. Execu2ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu2ve Session to discuss the following ma7er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding filling vacancy for City Council Member Place 5, pursuant to Sec�on 551.074
(Personnel Matters) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

2. Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and commi)ees -
specifically the Board of Adjustments (BOA) - pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters)

III. Adjourn Execu2ve Session

IV. Reconvene Public Mee2ng (6:00 P.M.)

V. Invoca2on and Pledge of Allegiance - Mayor Fowler

VI. Open Forum

This is a �me for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda or set for a
public hearing. Per Council policy, public comments should be limited to three minutes out of respect for other ci�zens'
�me. If you have a topic that warrants longer �me, please contact the City Secretary at kteague@rockwall.com to be
placed on the Agenda during the "Appointment Items" por�on of the mee�ng. This will allow your topic to be
provided sufficient �me for discussion and will permit proper no�ce to be given to the public. On topics raised during
Open Forum, please know Council is not permi(ed to respond to your comments during the mee�ng since the topic
has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Mee�ngs Act requires that topics of
discussion/delibera�on be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance of the Council mee�ng). This, in
part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also be involved in the discussion.

VII. Take any Ac2on as a Result of Execu2ve Session

VIII. Consent Agenda

These agenda items are rou�ne/administra�ve in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City Council
mee�ng, and/or they do not warrant Council delibera�on. If you would like to discuss one of these items, please let
the City Secretary know before the meeting starts so that you may speak during "Open Forum."

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the November 21, 2022 regular city council mee�ng, and
take any action necessary.

2. Z2022-047 - Consider a request by Javier Silva and JMS Custom Homes, LLC for the approval of an
ordinance for a Zoning Change from Agricultural (AG) District to a General Retail (GR) District for a
1.837-acre tract of land iden�fied as Tract 6 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-
Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, generally located on the east side of FM-1141 south of the
intersection of Waters Edge Drive and FM-1141, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

1



3. Z2022-049 - Consider a request by Deanna Welch-Williams of Sheldon Custom Homes on behalf of
Kenneth and Debbie Wade for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for
Residen�al Infill Adjacent to an Established Subdivision for the purpose of construc�ng a single-
family home on a 0.3080-acre parcel of land iden�fied as Lot 6, Block A, Eagle Point Estates
Addi�on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated
within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1505 S. Alamo Street, and take any ac�on
necessary (2nd Reading).

4. Z2022-050 - Consider approval of an ordinance for a Text Amendment to Ar�cle 05, District
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] for the
purpose of making minor changes to Subsec�on 06.16, Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline Overlay (TL OV)
District, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

5. P2022-057 - Consider a request by Jeff Kilburg of Apex Design Build on behalf of Chad Capps of
CMH Real Estate, LLC for the approval of a Replat for Lot 12, Block B, Horizon Ridge Addi�on being
a 1.253-acre parcel of land iden�fied as Lot 5, Block B, Horizon Ridge Addi�on, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 9 (PD-9) for General Retail (GR)
District land uses, situated at the northwest corner of the intersec�on of Rockwall Parkway and
Summer Lee Drive, and take any action necessary.

6. Consider approval of a 12 month service agreement with Fidelis Security in the amount of $48,000
for cybersecurity consul�ng to be funded by the Informa�on Technology Department Opera�ng
Budget, and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement, and take any action necessary.

7. Consider approving and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Riverstone Fence
Co. for installa�on of 800 linear feet of wrought iron perimeter fence at the 66 cemetery in the
amount of $44,250.00 to be funded by the Cemetery Fund, and take any action necessary.

IX. Appointment Items

1. Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representa�ve to discuss and answer any
questions regarding planning-related cases on the agenda.

X. Public Hearing Items

If you would like to speak regarding an item listed below, please turn in a (yellow) "Request to Address City Council"
form to the City Secretary either before the mee�ng or as you approach the podium. The Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem
will call upon you to come forth at the proper time. Please limit your comments to no more than three minutes.

1. Z2022-048 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Bryan Cook for the
approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living
Unit/Detached Garage/Carport on a one (1) acre parcel of land iden�fied as Lot 13, Block A,
Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addi�on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16
(SF-16) District, addressed as 2348 Saddlebrook Lane, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

XI. Ac2on Items

If your comments are regarding an agenda item below, you are asked to wait un�l that par�cular agenda item is up
for discussion, and the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem will call you forth to the podium to hear your comments (please limit
to 3 minutes or less). This allows for all public comments to be grouped with each specific agenda item for the Council
to consider, and they are then easily referenced in meeting recordings.

1. Z2019-027 - Discuss and consider a request by Raymond Jowers of Jowers, Inc. for the extension of
Ordinance No. 20-01 (S-212) allowing outside storage in conjunc�on with an exis�ng trailer and
parts sales and service facility (Big-Tex Trailers) on a 4.4317-acre tract of land iden�fied as Tract
22-01 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, addressed as
2260 E. IH-30, and take any action necessary.

2. MIS2022-023 - Discuss and consider a request by Patricia Mejia on behalf of the Children’s
Advocacy Center of Rockwall County for the approval of a Miscellaneous Case for an Excep�on to
the Street Improvement Requirements contained in the Municipal Code of Ordinances for a 7.497-
acre tract of land iden�fied as Tract 68 of the R. Ballard Survey, Abstract No. 29, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, generally located northwest of the
curve connecting Airport Road and E. Washington Street, and take any action necessary.

2



XII. City Manager's Report, Departmental Reports and related discussions pertaining to current city
ac2vi2es, upcoming mee2ngs, future legisla2ve ac2vi2es, and other related ma7ers.

1. Building Inspections Department Monthly Report - October 2022
2. Fire Department Monthly Report - October 2022
3. Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report - October 2022
4. Police Department Monthly Report - October 2022
5. Sales Tax Historical Comparison

6. Water Consumption Historical Statistics
XIII. Execu2ve Session.

The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu2ve Session to discuss the following ma7er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding filling vacancy for City Council Member Place 5, pursuant to Sec�on 551.074
(Personnel Matters) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney)

2. Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and commi)ees -
specifically the Board of Adjustments (BOA) - pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters)

XIV. Reconvene Public Mee2ng & Take Any Ac2on as Result of Execu2ve Session

XV. Adjournment

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommoda�ons or interpre�ve services
must be made 48 hours prior to this mee�ng. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for
further information.

The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into execu�ve session at any �me to discuss any of the ma)ers listed on
the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code ¶ 551.071 (Consulta�on with A)orney) ¶ 551.072 (Delibera�ons about
Real Property) ¶ 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and ¶ 551.087 (Economic Development)

I, Kristy Teague, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby cer�fy that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place
readily accessible to the general public at all �mes, on the 2nd day of Dec., 2022 at 4:00 p.m. and remained so posted for at least 72
continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

Kristy Teague, City Secretary
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.

Date Removed

3



MINUTES  
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

Monday, November 21, 2022 - 5:00 PM  
City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087  

      
I.  

 
CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER     

Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  Present were Mayor Kevin Fowler, Mayor Pro 
Tem Trace Johannesen, and Councilmembers Clarence Jorif, Dana Macalik, Anna Campbell, Bennie 
Daniels and Mark Moeller. Also present were City Manager Mary Smith and Assistant City Manager Joey 
Boyd. City Attorney Frank Garza joined Ex. Session by telephone. 
 
Mayor Fowler then read the below listed discussion item into the public record before recessing the 
meeting to go into Executive Session. 
 

II.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.    
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

  
1.  Discussion regarding status of case in the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division pursuant to Section 

§551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).  

III.  
 
ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION  

Council adjourned from Ex. Session at 5:30 p.m. 
 

IV.  
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)  

 
Mayor Fowler reconvened the public meeting at 6:00 p.m. with all seven council members being present.    

V.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - MAYOR PRO TEM JOHANNESEN 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
      

VI.  
 
OPEN FORUM  

 
Mayor Fowler explained how Open Forum is conducted, asking if anyone would like to come forth and 
speak at this time.  He then called forth Cedric Thomas, Chairman of the Planning & Zoning Commission, 
who briefed the Council on recommendations of the Commission regarding planning-related items on 
tonight’s agenda. 
 
No one else indicated a desire to come forth and speak at this time, so Mayor Fowler closed Open Forum.    

VII.  
 
TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
Council took no action as a result of Executive Session. 
    

4



VIII.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
1.  Consider approval of the minutes from the November 7, 2022 regular city council meeting, and take any action 

necessary.  
2.  Consider approval of an ordinance regarding City of Rockwall’s participation in the Texas Enterprise Zone 

Program for the following project: Channell Commercial Corporation located at 1700 Justin Road, Rockwall, 
TX 75087 as a Texas Enterprise Zone Project to the Office of the Governor Economic Development and 
Tourism, and take any action necessary. (2nd Reading)  

3.  Consider approval of an ordinance amending Chapter 12, Article XII, Section 12 by amending Section 12-1250 
through 12-1253 of the Code of Ordinances regarding regulation of non-emergency ambulance services in the 
City, and take any action necessary (2nd reading).  

4.  Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Birkhoff, Hendricks & Carter, LLP. for the 
John King Blvd. Utility Relocation Project in the amount of $582,780.00 to be funded by Water/Sewer Bonds, 
and take any action necessary.  

5.  Consider awarding a bid to Axis Construction and authorizing the City Manager to execute the contract for 
modifications to the Squabble Creek Sewer Bypass Pump in the amount of $33,630 to be funded by the 
Wastewater Operating Budget, and take any action necessary.  

6.  P2022-055 - Consider a request by Meredith Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of Peter H. Shaddock, 
Jr. of SH Dev Klutts Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a Final Plat for Phase 1 of the Homestead Subdivision 
consisting of 175 single-family residential lots and being a 129.485-acre portion of a larger 195.3177-acre tract 
of land identified as Tract 6 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 92 (PD-92), generally located at the northeast corner of the 
intersection of FM-549 and FM-1139, and take any action necessary.  

7.  P2022-056 - Consider a request by Ryan Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of William Johnson of LTL 
Family Holdings, LLC for the approval of a Final Plat for the Marina Village Subdivision being a 6.88-acre tract 
of land identified as Lot 4, Block A, Spyglass Hill #4 Addition and Tract 134-12 of the E. Teal Survey, Abstract 
No. 207, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) [Ordinance 
No. 92-39] for Zero Lot Line (ZL-5) District land uses, generally located on the south side of Henry M. Chandler 
Drive west of Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any action necessary. 
 

Mayor Fowler pulled items #3 and 7.  Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen then moved to approve the remaining 
items (#s 1, 2, 4, 5, and 6). Councilmember Jorif seconded the motion. The ordinance for #2 was read as 
follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-58 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, ORDAINING THE CITY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE TEXAS 
ENTERPRISE ZONE PROGRAM PURSUANT TO THE TEXAS ENTERPRISE 
ZONE ACT, CHAPTER 2303, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE (“ACT”), 
PROVIDING TAX INCENTIVES, DESIGNATING THE CITY MANAGER AS A 
LIAISON; NOMINATING CHANNELL COMMERCIAL CORPORATION 
(“CHANNELL”) TO THE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT & TOURISM (“EDT”) THROUGH THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT BANK (BANK) AS AN ENTERPRISE PROJECT (“PROJECT”); 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Regarding Consent Agenda item #3, Councilmember Jorif recused himself. Councilmember Macalik then 
moved to approve Consent Agenda item #3. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion. The 
ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

5



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-59 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING CHAPTER 12, ARTICLE XII, SECTION 12 BY AMENDING SECTIONS 
12-1250 THROUGH 12-1253 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, REGULATING 
AMBULANCE SERVICES IN THE CITY; PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY 
PROVISION; PROVIDNG FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
The motion passed by a vote of 6 in favor with 1 abstention (Jorif). 
 
Regarding Consent Agenda item #7, Councilmember Macalik asked the Planning Director to provide 
clarification on if this final plat approval has anything to do with the landscaping.  Mr. Miller generally 
explained that landscaping gets addressed later in the development process.  Councilmember Macalik 
then moved to approve Consent Agenda item #7. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion, which 
passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

IX.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
1.  Z2022-047 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Javier Silva and JMS Custom Homes, 

LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from Agricultural (AG) District to a General Retail 
(GR) District for a 1.837-acre tract of land identified as Tract 6 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, 
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass 
Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, generally located on the east side of FM-1141 south of the intersection of 
Waters Edge Drive and FM-1141, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information concerning this agenda item. The 
Planning & Zoning Commission did review this case and has recommended its approval to the City 
Council. Fifty-six notifications were mailed to adjacent property / land owners living within 500’ of the 
subject property, and the Caruth Lakes HOA was also notified. Staff has received two notices from two 
property owners in opposition to this request. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak at this 
time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Councilmember Jorif asked for and received clarification on the future process associated with this piece 
of property. Jorif wants to ensure that whatever ends up being built on the property is appropriate and 
takes into consideration the adjacent homes and homeowners. Indication was given that “General 
Retail” is more restrictive than “Commercial” zoning. 
 
Councilmember Daniels moved to approve Z2022-047. Councilmember Moeller seconded the motion. 
The ordinance was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO APPROVE A 
CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO A GENERAL 

6



RETAIL (GR) DISTRICT FOR A 1.837-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS 
TRACT 6 OF THE M. B. JONES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 122, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

2.  Z2022-048 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Bryan Cook for the approval of an 
ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) allowing a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached 
Garage on a one (1) acre parcel of land identified as Lot 13, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 2348 Saddlebrook 
Lane, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

Mayor Fowler announced that this agenda item will be heard and considered on Monday, December 5, 
2022. 
  

3.  Z2022-049 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Deanna Welch-Williams of Sheldon 
Custom Homes on behalf of Kenneth and Debbie Wade for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill Adjacent to an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a 
single-family home on a 0.3080-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 6, Block A, Eagle Point Estates Addition, 
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the Scenic 
Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1505 S. Alamo Street, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 

Planning Director Ryan Miller provided background information concerning this agenda item. The 
applicant wants to construct a single-family home. The city council is being asked to consider the size, 
location and architecture of this proposed home when compared to adjacent, existing homes. Staff has 
performed and provided said comparative analysis. Council approving this SUP is discretionary on the 
part of City Council. The city’s Planning & Zoning Commission has recommended approval of this SUP to 
the Council. Sixty-six notices were sent out to adjacent property owners and residents, and two notices 
in favor were received back. In addition, staff also notified the Waterstone Estates HOA. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened and then closed the public hearing, as no one indicated a desire to come forth 
and speak. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen moved to approve Z2022-049. Councilmember Campbell seconded the 
motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-2XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-
02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO 
GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL ADJACENT TO 
AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-
FAMILY HOME ON A 0.3080-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 6, 
BLOCK A, EAGLE POINT ESTATES ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 

7



ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM 
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING 
FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

4.  Z2022-050 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of an ordinance for a Text Amendment to 
Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] for 
the purpose of making minor changes to Subsection 06.16, Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline Overlay (TL OV) District, 
and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information concerning this agenda item. Mr. Miller 
explained that currently, in the city’s Takeline Overlay District ordinance regulations, concrete seawalls 
with concrete caps are required. In addition, the city does not allow private walkways to be constructed 
of concrete. Instead, they may only be stone or pavers. Recently, it was brought to staff’s attention that 
perhaps a change to these regulations would make more sense. This text amendment will allow concrete 
(walkways) to extend from the house down to the concrete seawall itself.  The city’s Planning & Zoning 
Commission voted 5-0 to recommend approval of this item to the City Council this evening. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak. There 
being no one indicating a desire to do so, he then closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Councilmember Jorif moved to approve Z2022-050. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion. The 
ordinance was read as follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY AMENDING 
ARTICLE 05, DISTRICT DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, AS DEPCITED IN EXHIBIT 
‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED 
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

X.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.    
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

  
1  Discussion regarding status of case in the Northern District of Texas, Dallas Division pursuant to 

Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney). 

XI.  
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  

Council did not reconvene in Executive Session following the close of the public meeting agenda. 
 
 

8



XII.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  

     
Mayor Fowler adjourned the meeting at 6:24 p.m. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS ON THIS 5th 

DAY OF DECEMBER, 2022. 

 

KEVIN FOWLER, MAYOR 
ATTEST:  

 
 

KRISTY TEAGUE, CITY SECRETARY 
 
 

9



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-60 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
APPROVE A CHANGE IN ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL 
(AG) DISTRICT TO A GENERAL RETAIL (GR) DISTRICT FOR A 
1.837-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 6 OF THE 
M. B. JONES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 122, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING 
MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Javier Silva for the approval of a Zoning Change 
from an Agricultural (AG) District to a General Retail (GR) District for a 1.837-acre tract of land 
identified as Tract 6 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, City of Rockwall, Rockwall 
County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, addressed as 883 FM-1141, and more fully 
described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ and Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter shall be 
referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, Texas, as heretofore amended, be and the same are hereby amended by amending 
the zoning map of the City of Rockwall so as to change the zoning of the Subject Property from 
an Agricultural (AG) District to a General Retail (GR) District;  
 
SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
provided for a General Retail (GR) District as stipulated in Subsection 01.01, Use of Land and 
Buildings, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, and Subsection 04.04, General Retail (GR) District, of 
Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-
02] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting of this zoning 
change, and as maybe amended in the future; 
 
SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in the 

10



zoning described herein; 
 
SECTION 4. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 5. If any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) of the City of Rockwall, Texas, and the City Council 
declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without 
the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
and 
 
SECTION 6. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be and the same are hereby repealed, and all other ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
not in conflict with the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full force and effect;  
 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 5TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2022. 

 
      

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  November 21, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: December 5, 2022 
 

11



Legal Description: A 1.837-acre tract of land identified as Tract 6 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 
122 
Addressed As: 883 FM-1141 

12



 

13



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-61 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-290 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO 
AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR 
RESIDENTIAL INFILL ADJACENT TO AN ESTABLISHED 
SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-
FAMILY HOME ON A 0.3080-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, 
IDENTIFIED AS LOT 6, BLOCK A, EAGLE POINT ESTATES 
ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING 
FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF 
FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Deanna Welch-Williams of Sheldon Custom 
Homes for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill Adjacent to an 
Established Subdivision to allow the construction of a single-family home on a 0.3080-acre parcel 
of land being described as Lot 6, Block A, Eagle Point Estates Addition, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District land uses, situated within the 
Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1505 S. Alamo Street, and being more specifically 
described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as 
the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1.  That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill Adjacent to an Established Subdivision to allow the 
construction of a single-family home in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth 
in Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.07, Single-Family 
10 (SF-10) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development 

14



Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future 
-- and with the following conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required: 
 
1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan 

as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 
 

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to 
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 
3) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted 

by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by 
the property owner shall be required. 

  
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this 

ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings 
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 4.  That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5.  Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6.  If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 

15



PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 5th DAY OF DECEMBER, 2022. 
 
 
 
     

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  November 21, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: December 5, 2022 
 
 

16



Address: 1505 S. Alamo Street 
Legal Description: Lot 6, Block A, Eagle Point Estates Addition 

17



18



 

 
 

19



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-62 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS 
HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY AMENDING ARTICLE 05, DISTRICT 
DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS, AS DEPCITED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF 
THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR 
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
WHEREAS, an amendment to the City of Rockwall’s Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 
20-02] has been initiated by the City Council of the City of Rockwall to amend Article 05, District 
Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02]; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the city’s corporate boundaries, and the governing body in 
the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby 
amended as specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance; 
 
SECTION 2.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 3.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02], and the City Council declares that it would 
have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to 
this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 
SECTION 4.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 5TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2022. 

 

20



 
 
 

       
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 
 

1st Reading:  November 21, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: December 5, 2022 

21



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Next Page … 

22



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: December 5, 2022

SUBJECT: P2022-057; REPLAT FOR LOT 12, BLOCK B, HORIZON RIDGE ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Applications
Location Map
Replat

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Jeff Kilburg of Apex Design Build on behalf of Chad Capps of CMH Real
Estate, LLC for the approval of a Replat for Lot 12, Block B, Horizon Ridge Addition being a
1.253-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 5, Block B, Horizon Ridge Addition, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 9 (PD-9) for General Retail (GR)
District land uses, situated at the northwest corner of the intersection of Rockwall Parkway and
Summer Lee Drive, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the proposed
Replat.

23



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: December 5, 2022 
 

APPLICANT: Jeff Kilburg; Apex Design Build 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2022-057; Replat for Lot 12, Block B, Horizon Ridge Addition 
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Jeff Kilburg of Apex Design Build on behalf of Chad Capps of CMH Real Estate, LLC for the approval of 
a Replat for Lot 12, Block B, Horizon Ridge Addition being a 1.253-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 5, Block B, Horizon Ridge 
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 9 (PD-9) for General Retail (GR) 
District land uses, situated at the northwest corner of the intersection of Rockwall Parkway and Summer Lee Drive, and take 
any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The applicant is requesting the approval of a Replat for a 1.253-acre parcel of land (i.e. Lot 5, Block A, Horizon Ridge 

Addition) for the purpose of establishing the fire lanes and utility easements necessary to develop a medical office on the 
subject property. 

 
 The subject property was annexed into the City of Rockwall on October 29, 1973 by Ordinance No. 73-44 [Case No. A1973-

006].  On November 12, 1973, the City Council approved Planned Development District 9 (PD-9) [Ordinance No. 73-44], 
which consisted of 192.10-acres including the subject property.  The base zoning established for this Planned Development 
District was General Retail (GR) District.  This Planned Development District has been amended nine (9) times since its 
adoption with four (4) of the amendments (Ordinance No.’s 86-55, 87-30, 88-13 & 88-20) effecting the subject property 
however, the subject property has remained vacant since annexation.  On April 12, 2022, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission approved a Site Plan [Case No. SP2022-009] for a Multi-Tenant Medical Office Building on the subject 
property.  
 

 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this plat -- conforming to the 
requirements for plats as stipulated by the Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is 
recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 
 

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 
compliance with the requirements of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the Planning and Zoning Commission chooses to recommend approval of the Replat for Lot 12, Block B, Horizon Ridge 
Addition staff would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from the Engineering, Planning and Fire Departments shall be addressed prior to the filing of this 

plat; and, 
 

24



(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On November 29, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the Replat by a 
vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Hustings absent.  

25



26



I
City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development and
therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor to provide

timely and accurate information, we make no guarantees. The City of
Rockwall makes no warranty, express or implied, including warranties of

merchantability and fitness for a particular purpose. Use of the information
is the sole responsibility of the user.

PD-13

PD-9

SKYLAR DR

SUMMER LEE DR

O
A

K
 D

R

ARISTA
RD

W
R

A
LP

H
H

A
LL

P
K

W
Y

HUNTERS GLEN

H
U

N
T

E
R

S
G

LE
N

N
O

R
T

H

R
O

C
K

W
A

LL
 P

K
W

Y

0 125 250 375 50062.5
Feet

Case Location Map =

P2022-057 Final Plat for 1200 Summer Lee Dr

27



D

D

D

OWNER/DEVELOPER
CHM Real Estate, LLC

740 Wilford Way,
Heath, Texas 75032

ENGINEER
Claymoore Engineering

1903 Central Drive, Suite 406
Bedford, Texas 76021

SURVEYOR'S NOTES:

1. Bearings and distances are based on Texas State Plane
Coordinate System, Texas North Central Zone 4202
North American Datum of  1983 (NAD 83) (U.S. Foot)
with a combined scale factor of 1.000146135.

2. This property lies within Zone "X" of  the Flood
Insurance Rate Map for  Rockwall County, Texas and
Incorporated Areas, map no. 48397C0040L, dated
September 26, 2008, via scaled map location and
graphic plotting.

3. Notice: Selling a portion of  this addition by metes and
bounds is a violation of  City subdivision ordinance and
state platting statutes and is subject to fines and
withholding of utilities and building certificates.

4. The purpose of  this plat is to add easements to a platted
lot.

5. Property owner to be responsible for all maintanance,
repair and replacement for all drainage systems
including detention system.

VICINITY MAP
NOT TO SCALE

SCALE:  1" = 30'

30' 0 15' 30' 60'

PAGE 1 OF 2

REPLAT
HORIZON RIDGE ADDITION

LOT 5R, BLOCK B
Being a Replat of Lot 5, Block B

Horizon Ridge Addition,
an addition to the City of Rockwall,

as recorded in Cab. F, Page 130, P.R.D.C.T.
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas

-- 2022 --
DRAWN BY: G.L.C.       DATE:  07/15/2022      CHECKED BY:  M.P.      JOB NO.:  D56655

Last Revision Date: 09/08/2022

1955 LAKEWAY DRIVE, SUITE 220  I  LEWISVILLE, TX 75057  I  214.217.2544
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10194331  I  WINDROSESERVICES.COM

ILAND SURVEYING PLATTING
W I N D ROS E

DETAIL "A"

28

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAIL C. PARKHILL INST. NO. 20150000014056 D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 10, BLOCK B HORIZON RIDGE ADDITION CAB. F, PG. 225 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL PARKWAY (CAB. E, PG. 149 ~ P.R.R.C.T.) (60' RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SUMMER LEE DRIVE (60' RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' FIRE LANE, ACCESS, DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT CAB. F, PG. 225 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT CAB. F, PG. 225 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' FIRE LANE, ACCESS, DRAINAGE & UTILITY EASEMENT CAB. F, PG. 225 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' DRAINAGE EASEMENT CAB. F, PG. 225 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT CAB. F, PG. 225 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' UTILITY EASEMENT CAB. F, PG. 225 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 17, BLOCK A PRESBYTERIAN HOSPITAL OF ROCKWALL ADDITION CAB. G, PG. 315 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 9, BLOCK A PHASE 1 OF  HORIZON RIDGE CENTER CAB. E, PG. 149 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 24, BLOCK A PRESBYTERIAN HOSPITAL OF ROCKWALL ADDITION INST. NO. 20200000011578 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' BUILDING SETBACK LINE CAB. F, PG. 159-160 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT CAB. F, PG. 251 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
36' FIRELANE, ACCESS & UTILITY EASEMENT CAB. F, PG. 251 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK E FOXCHASE PHASE 5 CAB. D, PG. 110 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 7

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 6

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 11, BLOCK B HORIZON RIDGE ADDITION CAB. F, PG. 251 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5, BLOCK B HORIZON RIDGE ADDITION CAB. F, PG. 130 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHM REAL ESTATE, LLC INST. NO. 20210000027224,  O.P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5R, BLOCK B 54,582 SF 1.253 Acres

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRS

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" REBAR (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
"X" CUT (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" REBAR (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" REBAR (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" REBAR (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 22°08'10" E  197.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 22°08'10" W  122.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=855.00' Δ=5°00'10" L=74.66' CB=S 24°38'15" W C=74.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" REBAR (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT OF BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT CAB. E, PAGE 117 P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATER EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO CITY OF ROCKWALL BENCHMARK NO. 10 N27°56'43"W,4395.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO CITY OF ROCKWALL BENCHMARK NO. 7 N75°40'23"W,1610.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' MUTUAL ACCESS EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' MUTUAL ACCESS EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRIVATE DETENTION AND DRAINAGE EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' LANDSCAPE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' LANDSCAPE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' BUILDING SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID NORTHING = 7011145.69 GRID EASTING = 2591695.46

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID NORTHING = 7011045.99 GRID EASTING = 2591854.94

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8" REBAR "1890" (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 67°51'50" E 26.01'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=38.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=14.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=3.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=2.49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=7.55'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L=5.18'

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
S53°40'09"E12.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' WATER EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC EASEMENT PER THIS PLAT



PRELIMINARY

DRAWN BY: G.L.C.       DATE:  07/15/2022      CHECKED BY:  M.P.      JOB NO.:  D56655
Last Revision Date: 03/01/2021

1955 LAKEWAY DRIVE, SUITE 220  I  LEWISVILLE, TX 75057  I  214.217.2544
FIRM REGISTRATION NO. 10194331  I  WINDROSESERVICES.COM

ILAND SURVEYING PLATTING
W I N D ROS E

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF DENTON §

This is to certify that I, Mark N. Peeples, a Registered Professional Land Surveyor of
the State of Texas, have platted the subdivision from an actual survey on the ground,
and that this plat correctly represents that survey made by me or under my direction
and supervision.

______________________________
Mark N. Peeples, R.P.L.S.
No. 6443

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF DENTON §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the State of
Texas, on this day personally appeared Mark N. Peeples, known to me to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to
me that she executed the same for the purposes and consideration therein expressed.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this ________day of
______________________ 20____.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ______________ §

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the
State of  Texas, on this day personally appeared
____________________________________, known to me to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the foregoing instrument and
acknowledged to me that she executed the same for the purposes and
consideration therein expressed.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE this ________day
of ______________________ 20____.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ELLIS §

WHEREAS CHM Real Estate, LLC is the owner of  a 1.253 acre tract of  land situated in the E. Teal Survey, Abstract Number 207,
Rockwall County, Texas, being all of  Lot 5, Block B of  Horizon Ridge Addition, an addition to the City of  Rockwall, as recorded in
Cabinet F, Page 130, Plat Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being all of  a tract of  land described to CHM Real Estate, LLC by
Special Warranty Deed recorded in Instrument Number 20210000027224, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas and being more
particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: (Bearings and Distances are based on the State Plane Coordinate System, Texas
North Central Zone (4202), North American Datum of 1983 (NAD83) (US Foot) with a combined scale factor of 1.000146135);

BEGINNING at a 5/8 inch rebar found for the southwest corner of  said Lot 5, same being the southernmost corner of  Lot 11, Block B
of  Horizon Ridge Addition, an addition to the City of  Rockwall, as recorded in Cabinet F, Page 251, Plat Records, Rockwall County,
Texas and lying on the north right-of-way line of Summer Lee Drive (60 foot right-of-way);

THENCE North 22 degrees 08 minutes 10 seconds East, departing the north right-of-way line of  said Summer Lee Drive, with the
southeast line of  said Lot 11, a distance of  219.32 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar capped "WINDROSE" set for the southwest corner of  Lot 10,
Block B of  Horizon Ridge Addition, an addition to the City of  Rockwall, as recorded in Cabinet F, Page 225, Plat Records, Rockwall
County, Texas, same being the northeast corner of said Lot 5;

THENCE South 67 degrees 51 minutes 50 seconds East, departing the east line of  said Lot 11, with the south line of  said Lot 10, a
distance of  250.74 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar capped "WINDROSE" set for the southeast corner of  said Lot 10, same being the northeast
corner of  said Lot 5, lying on the west right-of-way line of  Rockwall Parkway (60 foot right-of-way) and being the beginning of  a
curve to the right with a radius of  855.00 feet, a central angle of  06 degrees 16 minutes 27 seconds and a chord bearing and distance of
South 30 degrees 16 minutes 34 seconds West, a distance of 93.58 feet;

THENCE with said curve to the right, with the west right-of-way line of  said Rockwall Parkway, an arc length of  93.63 feet to a 5/8
inch rebar found for corner;

THENCE South 33 degrees 26 minutes 32 seconds West, with the west right-of-way line of  said Rockwall Parkway, a distance of
146.09 feet to a 5/8 inch rebar found at a corner clip at the intersection of  the north right-of-way line of  said Summer Lee Drive and the
west right-of-way line of said Rockwall Parkway;

THENCE South 78 degrees 25 minutes 40 seconds West, with said corner clip, a distance of  28.29 feet to a 5/8 inch rebar found at the
south end of said corner clip

THENCE North 56 degrees 35 minutes 12 seconds West, with the north right-of-way line of  said Summer Lee Drive, a distance of
27.10 feet to a 5/8 inch rebar found for corner and being the beginning of  a curve to the left with a radius of  2822.35 feet, a central
angle of  03 degrees 16 minutes 09 seconds and a chord bearing and distance of  North 58 degrees 13 minutes 13 seconds West, a
distance of 161.01 feet;

THENCE with said curve to the left, with the north right-of-way line of  said Summer Lee Drive, an arc length of  161.04 feet to THE
POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 54,582 square feet or 1.253 acres of land, more or less.

NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS

THAT WE CHM Real Estate, LLC, Owners, do hereby bind ourselves and our heirs, assignees, and successors of  title this plat
designating the herein above described property as HORIZON RIDGE ADDITION, an addition to the City of  Rockwall, and do
hereby dedicate to the public use forever the sreets, alleys, and right of  way easements shown thereon and do hereby reserve the
easement strips shown on this plat for the mutual use and accommodation of  garbage collection agencies and all public utilities desiring
to use or using same. Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of  any buildings, fences trees,
shrubs, or other improvements or growths that in any way endanger or interfere with the construction, maintenance or efficiency of  its
respective systems on any of  these easement strips, and any public utility shall at all times have the right of  ingress and egress to and
from and upon the said easement strips for the purpose of  constructing, reconstructing, inspecting, patrolling, without the necessity at
any time of  procuring the permission of  anyone. This plat approved subject to all platting ordinances, rules, regulations and resolutions
of the City of Rowlett, Texas.

Witness Our Hands at _________________, _____________, this _______ day of ________________, 20___.

_____________________________________________

Authorized Representative - CHM Real Estate, LLC

_____________________________________________

Printed Name

_____________________________________________

Title / Date

PAGE 2 OF 2

REPLAT
HORIZON RIDGE ADDITION

LOT 5R, BLOCK B
Being a Replat of Lot 5, Block B

Horizon Ridge Addition,
an addition to the City of Rockwall,

as recorded in Cab. F, Page 130, P.R.D.C.T.
City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas

-- 2022 --

OWNER/DEVELOPER
CHM Real Estate, LLC

740 Wilford Way,
Heath, Texas 75032

ENGINEER
Claymoore Engineering

1903 Central Drive, Suite 406
Bedford, Texas 76021

CITY APPROVAL CERTIFICATE:
I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of an addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas was
approved by the City Council of the City of Rockwall on the ______ day of _______________,
20____.

This approval shall be invalid unless the approved plat for such addition is recorded in the office of
the County Clerk of Rockwall County, Texas within one hundred eighty (180) days from said date
of final approval.

WITNESS OUR HANDS:

________________________________________________________________________
Mayor, City of Rockwall Date

________________________________________________________________________
City Secretary Date

________________________________________________________________________
City Engineer Date

________________________________________________________________________
Planning and Zoning Commission Chairman                  Date

29

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE RECORDED FOR ANY PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE VIEWED OR RELIED UPON AS A FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/8/2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
V:\WRD SITE NOs\D56655 - NWC Rockwall Parkway & Summer Lee Drive - Rockwall\Drawings

AutoCAD SHX Text
Line Data Table

AutoCAD SHX Text
Line #

AutoCAD SHX Text
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text
L2

AutoCAD SHX Text
L3

AutoCAD SHX Text
L4

AutoCAD SHX Text
L5

AutoCAD SHX Text
L6

AutoCAD SHX Text
L7

AutoCAD SHX Text
L8

AutoCAD SHX Text
L9

AutoCAD SHX Text
Distance

AutoCAD SHX Text
7.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.44'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
36.54'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.13'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.03'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5.90'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.58'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bearing

AutoCAD SHX Text
S33°26'32"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N67°30'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S56°39'56"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N78°37'34"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S56°22'26"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N67°30'00"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N31°28'53"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N00°00'00"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
N53°40'09"W

AutoCAD SHX Text
Curve Data Table

AutoCAD SHX Text
Curve #

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
C3

AutoCAD SHX Text
Arc

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.45'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.42'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Radius

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
Delta

AutoCAD SHX Text
039°35'42"

AutoCAD SHX Text
035°43'14"

AutoCAD SHX Text
090°00'00"

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chord Bearing

AutoCAD SHX Text
N48°53'02"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N14°15'33"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N77°07'10"E

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chord

AutoCAD SHX Text
17.10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
15.33'

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.49'



  
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO:   Mary Smith, City Manager 
Cc: Mayor and City Council Members  
FROM:  Denny Lassetter, Director of Information Technology 
DATE:  December 5, 2022 
SUBJECT: Fidelis Security – (IT) Security Program/Testing as a Service 
  
 
City of Rockwall’s IT Department recognizes the need to build and maintain a sustainable, 
defensible cybersecurity program, both for the internal benefit of the organization and for the 
benefit of our citizens and the community. In order to support Rockwall in these goals, Fidelis Risk 
Advisory is proposing to provide two core services: 
 

1) Security Program Management and Oversight 
2) Security Testing of City of Rockwall’s external and internal network. 

 
Security program management and oversight are services designed to provide cost-effective 
support to assist in the building, implementation, and maturation of Rockwall’s information security 
program. This support will allow the Rockwall Technology team to leverage information security 
expertise and maintain momentum related to the city’s technology-related security initiatives. 
 
Proposal Total:  $48,000.00 (12 Months) 
 
The City Council is asked to consider approving this proposal and authorizing the City Manager 
to execute a contract for 12 months of consulting services with Fidelis Security.  This project was 
approved in the 2022-2023 budget, and funds are available in the Information Technology Service 
Fund to pay for this 12-month contract. City Staff is available to answer any questions the Council 
may have concerning this matter. 

30



 

  CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 

MEMORANDUM   
  
 
TO:  Mary Smith, City Manager 
  Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
                        Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent 
 
FROM: Travis E. Sales, Director Parks, Recreation and Animal Services 
 
DATE:  December 5, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Wrought Iron Fence (66 Cemetery Boundary Perimeter)    
  
 
 
This project is for the installation of approximately 800’ linear feet of wrought iron boundary perimeter 
fence on north and east sides of the 66 Cemetery. This is an approved 2022-2023 budget request.  
 
The cost of this project including removal and storage of the existing original boundary fence that is in 
really bad shape is $44,250.00.  There was an approved budget of $35,500.00 to be funded out of the 
Cemetery Fund / construction and repair account, so this line item will need to be increased by $8,750.00 
and there are reserves available in the Cemetery Fund.   
 
The bid provided by Riverstone Fence Co. which was the low bid of two sealed bids that were opened at 
3:00pm on Wednesday, November 23, 2022. 
 
The City has met all formal bidding requirements pertaining to the purchase and install of this fence 
project. 
 
For Council consideration is this wrought iron fence project bid award to the above listed vendor for the 
respective dollar amounts and authorize the City Manager to execute purchase orders and/or contracts 
for this project. 

31



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: December 5, 2022

SUBJECT:
Z2022-048; SPECIFIC USE PERMIT FOR A GUEST
QUARTERS/SECONDARY LIVING UNIT AND DETACHED GARAGE AT
2348 SADDLEBROOK LANE

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
HOA Notification Map
Property Owner Notification Map
Property Owner Notification List
Public Notice
Property Owner Notifications
For and Against Map
Concept Plan
Building Elevations
Floor Plan
Electrical Plan
Accessory Structure Analysis
Draft Ordinance

Summary/Background Information
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Bryan Cook for the approval of
a n ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living
Unit/Detached Garage/Carport on a one (1) acre parcel of land identified as Lot 13, Block A,
Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-
Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 2348 Saddlebrook Lane, and take any action
necessary (1st Reading).

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the proposed
Specific Use Permit (SUP).  This case will require a supermajority vote for approval.

32



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: December 5, 2022 
 

APPLICANT: Bryan Cook  
 

CASE NUMBER: Z2022-048; Specific Use Permit for a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached  
 Garage at 2348 Saddlebrook Lane  
 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Bryan Cook for the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a 
Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage on a one (1) acre parcel of land identified as Lot 13, Block A, 
Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed 
as 2348 Saddlebrook Lane, and take any action necessary. 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The subject property was annexed into the City of Rockwall on August 30, 1999 by Ordinance No. 99-33 [Case No. A1999-002]. 
At the time of annexation, the subject property was zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  On January 19, 2000, Saddlebrook Estates 
#2 Addition was adopted, establishing 45 single-family homes on 51.47-acres. Based on this information, at some point between 
the time of annexation and January 19, 2000, the subject property was rezoned to Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District.  This 
remains the current zoning designation of the subject property.  According to the Rockwall Central Appraisal District (RCAD), a 
3,718 SF single-family home was constructed on the subject property in 2002.  Also existing on the subject property is a 164 
SF covered porch constructed in 2002, a 216 SF pergola constructed in 2008, and a 128 SF accessory building constructed in 
2016. 
 
PURPOSE 
 
The applicant -- Bryan Cook -- is requesting the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow for the construction of a Guest 
Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage that exceeds the overall maximum allowable square footage. 
 
ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS 
 
The subject property is addressed as 2348 Saddlebrook Lane.  The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as follows: 

 
North: Directly north of the subject property are two (2), one (1) acre lots (i.e. Lots 14 and 15, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates 

#2) zoned Single Family 16 (SF-16) District.  Each of the lots currently has a single-family home situated on it. 
Beyond this is the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall followed by the Saddlebrook Estates Subdivision, which 
was established in 1978 and consisting of nine (9) single-family homes.  

 
South: Directly south of the subject property is The Rock, which is classified as a R2 (i.e. residential, two [2] lane, undivided 

roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive 
Plan. Beyond this are three (3), one (1) acre lots (i.e. Lots 10, 11, &12, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates #2), zoned 
Single Family 16 (SF-16) District.  Each of the lots currently has a single-family home situated on it. Beyond that is 
the corporate limits of the City of Rockwall followed by several lots with single-family homes situated on them.  

 
East: Directly east of the subject property is Saddlebrook Lane, which is classified as a R2 (i.e. residential, two [2] lane, 

undivided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 
Comprehensive Plan. Beyond this is ten (10), one (1) acre lots (i.e. Lots 11-20, Block B, Saddlebrook Estates #2) 

33



zoned Single Family 16 (SF-16) District.  Each of the lots currently has a single-family home situated on it. Beyond 
this is FM-1141, which is classified as an M4D (i.e. major collector, four [4] lane, divided roadway) on the City’s 
Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

 
West: Directly west of the subject property is a 17.51-acre parcel of land (i.e. Lot 1, Block A, Cox Acres) developed with 

a 4,295 SF single family home. Beyond this is a 2.12-acre parcel of land (i.e. Lot 2, Block A, Utley Addition) 
developed with a 2,475 SF single family home. Beyond this is E. Old Quail Run Road, which is classified as a R2 
(i.e. residential, two [2] lane, undivided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan contained in the 
OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan. 

 
MAP 1: LOCATION MAP 
YELLOW: SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 

 
 

 
CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST 
 
The applicant has submitted an application, residential plot plan, and conceptual building elevations. The applicant is requesting 
to construct a 1,560 SF metal Guest Quarters/Detached Garage. The Guest Quarters/Detached Garage will have 1,200 SF of 
enclosed area and a 360 SF outdoor living area and carport. According to the applicant, the structure will be used as a garage; 
however, there will be a bathroom, which is one (1) element of a dwelling unit qualifying this request as a Guest 
Quarters/Secondary Living Unit. 
 
 

34



CONFORMANCE WITH THE CITY’S CODES 
 
Article 13, Definitions, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) defines a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Units as “(a)n 
accessory building designed for the temporary occupancy of guests of the primary dwelling for which there is no remuneration 
and is not rented or otherwise used as separate domicile.” According to the Permissible Use Charts contained in Article 04, 
Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Units is permitted as an 
Accessory land use in a Single-Family Estate 1.5 (SFE-1.5) District, and -- according to Subsection 02.03 -- is subject to the 
following Conditional Land Use Standards: [1] the structure must be ancillary to a single-family home, [2] the square footage of 
the structure shall not exceed 30% of the square footage of the primary structure, and [3] the structure may not be sold or 
conveyed separately from the single-family home without meeting the zoning requirements for the district. The code goes on to 
state that Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Units not meeting these standards can be approved by the City Council through a 
Specific Use Permit (SUP).  With regard to the Detached Garage, Section 07.04. Accessory Structure Development Standards, 
of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) stipulates that the maximum size for a 
Detached Garage shall be 625 SF; however, this section of the code goes on to allow the City Council the ability to approve 
accessory structures that do not meet the minimum or maximum standards through a Specific Use Permit (SUP). In addition, 
the Guest Quarters/Detached Garage is required to meet the Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District density and dimensional 
requirements contained in Subsection 07.01, Residential District Development Standards, of Article 05, District Development 
Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) which are listed below.  
 

Ordinance Provisions Zoning District Standards Conformance to the Standards 
Number of Accessory Structures Permitted 2 X=2; In Conformance1 
Minimum Rear Yard Setback  10-Feet Estimated to be In Conformance 
Minimum Side Yard Setback 8-Feet Estimated to be In Conformance 
Maximum Building Height 15-Feet X=14-Feet; In Conformance 
Between Buildings 10-feet Estimated to be In Conformance 

 

NOTES: 
 

1:  As an operational condition of the case, the applicant will be required to remove one (1) of the existing accessory structures prior to the issuance of a 
building permit for the new accessory building.  This will bring the property into conformance with the requirements of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC).   

 
STAFF ANALYSIS 
 
Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit are permitted to be 30.00% of the square footage of the primary structure. In this case, 
the applicant is permitted by right a 1,115.4 SF Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit (i.e. 3,718 SF * 30% = 1,115.4 SF). Staff 
should also point out that the maximum permissible size of a detached garage is 625 SF.  With that being said the applicant is 
requesting a 1,560 SF Guest Quarters/Detached Garage, which exceeds the maximum permitted size of a Guest 
Quarters/Secondary Living Unit by 445 SF and represents 41.96% of the primary structure.  This structure also exceeds the 
maximum permitted size of a Detached Garage by 935 SF.  Based on this, the applicant is requesting a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) to allow the construction of a Guest Quarters/Detached Garage that exceeds the maximum permissible size. For the 
purpose of comparing the proposed Guest Quarters/Detached Garage for the subject to other Guest Quarters/Detached 
Garages constructed in the Saddlebrook Estates Subdivision.  Through this analysis, staff has identified ten (10) Guest 
Quarters/Detached Garages constructed in the subdivision.  Two (2) of the structures are larger than what the applicant is 
proposing (i.e. an 1,836 SF detached garage at 2312 Saddlebrook Lane, and an 1,860 SF detached garage at 2364 Saddlebrook 
Lane), with the largest Detached Garage being 1,860 SF or 300 SF more than what is being proposed by the applicant. Staff 
should point out that both of these accessory structures were constructed with the same building materials as the primary 
structure, which was a requirement for detached garages under the previous zoning ordinance. 
 
At the November 15, 2022 Planning and Zoning Commission meeting the applicant provided a site plan showing the location of 
the accessory building; however, the site plan did not show dimensions to other accessory structures or the property lines.  Staff 
will ensure that the structure meets these requirements at the time of permitting if this case is approved.  In addition, if the 
applicant’s Specific Use Permit (SUP) is approved, staff has included operational conditions in the Specific Use Permit (SUP) 
ordinance that tie down the size, height, and general architecture of the proposed structure. Staff has also included an 
operational condition requiring that the 128 SF existing accessory building be removed from the subject property prior to the 
construction of the Guest Quarters/Detached Garage.  With this being said, the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) request 
is a discretionary decision for the City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission. 

35



 
NOTIFICATIONS 
 
On October 20, 2022, staff mailed 24 notices to property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the subject property.  Staff 
also sent a notice to the Stoney Hollow Homeowners Association (HOA), which is the only HOA or Neighborhood Organizations 
within 1,500-feet of the subject property participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program. Additionally, staff posted a sign 
on the subject property, and advertised the public hearings in the Rockwall Herald Banner as required by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC).  At the time this report was drafted, staff had received the following: 
 
(1) Two (2) property owner notifications from within the 500-foot buffer in favor of the applicant’s request. 

 
(2) Three (3) property owner notifications from within the 500-foot buffer in opposition of the applicant’s request.  
 
NOTE: According to Subsection 02.03(G), Protest of a Zoning Change, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review 
Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(p)roperty owners adjacent to and within a radius of 200-feet of a property 
for which a zoning change or Specific Use Permit (SUP) is being considered have the right to file a written protest against the 
request.  The land area of this 200-foot radius includes public right-of-way, open space and parkland.  Whenever such written 
protest is signed by the owners of 20% or more of the area of the lots or land included in the request, or of the lots or land 
immediately adjoining the same and within the above mentioned 200-foot radius … such zoning change or Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) shall require a supermajority vote (i.e. a three-fourths vote of those members present), with a minimum of four (4) votes 
in the affirmative required for approval.”  In accordance with this section of the Unified Development Code (UDC), staff has 
prepared a For/Against Map for the property owner notifications received within 200-feet of the subject property.  Currently, the 
opposition to the applicant’s request equates to 34.7% of the total land area within 200-feet of the subject property.  This means 
that this case will require a supermajority vote of the City Council for approval. 
 
CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve of the applicant’s request for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Guest Quarters/Detached 
Garage, then staff would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) The applicant shall be responsible for maintaining compliance with the operational conditions contained in the Specific Use 

Permit (SUP) ordinance and which are detailed as follows: 
 

(a) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Concept Plan as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of the 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance. 
 

(b) The construction of a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage on the Subject Property shall 
generally conform to the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance. 

 
(c) The Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage shall not exceed a maximum size of 1,560 SF. 

 
(d) The Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage shall include a paved driveway to the structure.  

 
(e) The applicant is to remove the existing 128 SF accessory building prior to the construction of the Guest 

Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage. 
 

(f) The maximum height of the Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage shall not exceed a total 
height of 15-feet. 

 
(g) The Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage shall not be sold or conveyed separately from the 

single-family home without meeting the requirements of the zoning district and the subdivision ordinance. 
 

(2) The applicant shall provide staff with a site plan that shows conformance to the with the Residential District Development 
Standards contained in Subsection 07.01 of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC), before the issuance of a building permit. 

36



 
(3) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall conform to the requirements set forth 

by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of 
Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered 
and/or enforced by the state and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On October 29, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission made a motion to recommend denial of the Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) by a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Hustings absent.  According to Subsection 02.03(G), Protest of a Zoning Change, 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code (UDC), “(i)f such change 
[zoning change or Specific Use Permit (SUP)] is recommended for denial by the Planning and Zoning Commission, such zoning 
change or Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall require a supermajority vote (i.e. three-fourths vote of those members present), with 
a minimum of four (4) votes in the affirmative required for approval.” 
 

37



38



39



40



41



TYLER WILLIAM L AND VANITA RAE 
1501 THE ROCK  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

COX GERALD GLEN AND ROSALBA CARRASCO 
1800 E QUAIL RUN RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

FLANNERY SHEILA S & WILLIAM J III 
JOINT TENANTS W/RIGHT SURVIVORSHIP 

2095 E QUAIL RUN RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

FREDERICK CURTIS 
2181 E QUAIL RUN RD  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

RESIDENT 
2325  SADDLEBROOK LN  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

BROWN CHRISTOPHER & SHELLEY 
2329 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

WHITE JOHN C & PAMELA E 
2332 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

WHANNELL DAN & TAMMY 
2333 SADDLEBROOK LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

SHACK RANDY & JAMIE 
2336 SADDLEBROOK LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

THOMAS WILLARD L AND PEGGY J 
2337 SADDLEBROOK LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

WRIGHT MARTY ALLEN & DEBRA KAY 
2340 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

TROISE GUTHRIE CHASE 
2341 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

SCHALE WILLIAM AND CORTNEY 
2345 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

GRIFFIN STEPHEN J 
2348 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

JONES BRADLEY K AND SUSAN M 
2352 SADDLEBROOK LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

COX ROBERT & BEVERLY 
2356 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

OROZCO ARTHUR 
2360 SADDLEBROOK LANE  

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

 

HARVEY LEE L AND 
MARIA J PEREIRA 

2361 SADDLEBROOK LANE  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

BERGER KEVIN M & DEBBIE R 
2364 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

PROCTOR CAROLYN 
2365 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

STELZER WADE L & MISTY M 
2368 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

GILKINSON DOYLE D & LORA A 
2369 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

ELLIS MELISSA A AND CHIMA O 
2372 SADDLEBROOK LN  
ROCKWALL, TX 75087 

 

 

COX GERALD GLEN AND ROSALBA CARRASCO 
815 T.L. TOWNSEND SUITE 101 

ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
 

     

     

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



                              

              

  
 

                    

  
             

     

 
 

  

           

         

          

    

 

           

    
 

  
   

  
   

    

 

                        

 
 

              
                          

                        

         

                    

       

 

        

51



52



53



�����������	�
��
����������������	�������������	�������	��	�����������������������������������������	��	��������������������
��
��������	��	�����������������������������	������	��� 	�����!�������������������	�����������������"����#
$%&�'('�)%*�+,-.�-/%*0�0+(1�2%3(34�%.�56,7(8(7�91,�:,.;(0�<59:=�.,>*,10?@

54



BA
IL

EY
D

R

E QUAIL RUN RD

THE ROCK

SA
D

D
LE

BR
O

O
K 

LN

FM
11

41
N

 JO
H

N
 K

IN
G

 B
LVD

DUNCAN BRYAN
AND BEVERLY

2389
SADDLEBROOK LN

WHITE JOHN
C & PAMELA E

2332
SADDLEBROOK LN

JONES
BRADLEY K AND
SUSAN M
2352
SADDLEBROOK LN

COX ROBERT &
BEVERLY

2356
SADDLEBROOK

LN

GRANT NICHOLAS
P & SHERRI D

1569 E
OLD QUAIL

RUN RD

GILKINSON
DOYLE D &

LORA A
2369

SADDLEBROOK LN

CALDERON
ALEJANDRO
& ROSARIO

2373
SADDLEBROOK LN

ARENAS
SEVERIANO &

KRISTI L
2377

SADDLEBROOK LN

WHISENHUNT
BARRY I &
JOYCE D

2381
SADDLEBROOK LN

GRIFFIN STEPHEN J
2348

SADDLEBROOK LN

HARVEY LEE
L AND
2361

 SADDLEBROOK
LN

PROCTOR
CAROLYN

2365
SADDLEBROOK

LN

ROMERO
MARGARET

ALLEN-
2313

SADDLEBROOK LN

MUGGEO
THOMAS

& PATRICIA M
2317

SADDLEBROOK LN

ROBINSON
RONNIE D &
VERONICA A

2321
SADDLEBROOK LN2325

SADDLEBROOK
LN

STELZER
WADE L &
MISTY M
2368
SADDLEBROOK LN

ELLIS MELISSA
A AND CHIMA O

2372
SADDLEBROOK LN

SHACK
RANDY &

JAMIE
2336

SADDLEBROOK LN

SMITH
WILLIAM

CLEVE
JR &
2312

 SADDLEBROOK LN

LLOYD DANIEL
AND REBECCA R

2316
SADDLEBROOK LN

TAYLOR
BRANDON

G & AMANDA H
2320

SADDLEBROOK LN

JONES
JAMES E

2309
SADDLEBROOK

LN

BASHAM
ERIC B

2376
SADDLEBROOK

LN

DEFEBAUGH
WALTER W
& DAWN A

2380
SADDLEBROOK LN

GRAY RYAN D
AND MARISA C

2384
SADDLEBROOK LN

WRIGHT MARTY
ALLEN &

DEBRA KAY
2340

SADDLEBROOK LN

OSBORNE
AARON &
BARBARA

2305
 SADDLEBROOK LN

OROZCO ARTHUR
2360

SADDLEBROOK
LN

BERGER KEVIN M
& DEBBIE R

2364
SADDLEBROOK LN

TROISE GUTHRIE
CHASE

2341
SADDLEBROOK LN

SCHALE WILLIAM
AND CORTNEY

2345
SADDLEBROOK LN

BROWN
CHRISTOPHER

& SHELLEY
2329

SADDLEBROOK LN

WHANNELL
DAN & TAMMY

2333
SADDLEBROOK LN

THOMAS WILLARD L
AND PEGGY J
2337
SADDLEBROOK LN

BARON JEFFREY
MICHAEL &

JEANNE MARIE
2324

SADDLEBROOK LN

PUTCHINSKI
PAUL & SHANNON

2385
SADDLEBROOK LN

CALLICOATT
GEORGE &

JUDY
2388

 SADDLEBROOK LN

AMUNDSON
DAVID O

& ALICIA K
2328

SADDLEBROOK LN

NALLEY MICHAEL
R & LORI D

1445 E QUAIL
RUN RD

KOUVELIS
HILDA & PETER

1415
QUAIL

RUN RD

LARRIVIERE
MICHAEL R
& LISA J
1425  QUAIL
RUN RD

ROCKWALL
I S D

  FM1141

LANKFORD
BONNIE

1691  OLD
E QUAIL
RUN RD

UTLEY
HERMAN D

1815 E
OLD QUAIL

RUN RD

PICHARDO ROGER
FRANCISCO AND
COURTNEY RAE

1751 E OLD QUAIL
RUN RD

COX GERALD GLEN AND
ROSALBA CARRASCO
1800 E QUAIL RUN RD

TYLER WILLIAM L
AND VANITA RAE
1501  THE ROCK

GIDEON GROVE
HOMEOWNERS
ASSOCIATION

INC
  EVERT

WAY

BERHE MERHAWI
2002  BAILEY
DRIVE

PACESETTER
HOMES LLC

1328
 KIRKWOOD

ROAD

PACESETTER
HOMES LLC

1324
KIRKWOOD

ROAD

KANDIMALLA
RAHUL
1325
 KIRKWOOD
ROAD

DEAPEN RICHARD
AND ALICIA

2010  BAILEY DRIVE
GARDNER JAMES

K JR AND
2006  BAILEY

DRIVE

MAKEWAY
LLC

  JOHN
KING
BLVD

HAETTICH
JOHN F

14

BENTLEY
JONATHAN &

KIMBERLY
1HUTCHESON

BILLY B

KEGGEREIS
NORMA

1650
FREDERICK

CURTIS
2181

FLANNERY
SHEILA S &
WILLIAM J III

2095

SCHIEBERLE
STATON

AND BECKY
2215

ECHOLS
JAMES
WADE
2307

RICHARDSON
FRANKLIN

AND
JENNIFER

2343

SELF
CRAIG &

CHRISTINA
2249

GRANT NICHOLAS
P & SHERRI D

1569

HUX CLYDE A
& SUSAN L

10
THE DAVID

TODD
BUECHE

FAMILY TRUST

BUNTS
BRIAN &

CHETSAIRA
5

GRANT NICHOLAS
P & SHERRI D
  QUAIL RUN RD

3549

1141 CORNELIUS RD

CLEM RD

FEATHE
RS

TO
NE DR

E QUAIL RUN RD
BOYETT LN

YORK
DR

N COUNTRY LN

H
AY

S
RD

FM
 1

14
1

N
 J

O
H

N
K

IN
G

 B
LV

D

E Q
UAIL

RUN RD

ST
ODG

H
IL

L

RD

N

LA
KE

SHORE
DR

")205

City of Rockwall
Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75087
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development and
therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor to provide timely
and accurate information, we make no guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes
no warranty, express or implied, including warranties of merchantability and
fitness for a particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility
of the user. I

**PROPERTIES OUT OF THE 200' BUFFER BUT WITHIN THE NOTIFICATION AREA ARE SHOWN FOR
REFERENCE ONLY. THEY ARE NOT INCLUDED IN THE PERCENTAGE CALCULATIONS**

Z2022-048 SUP for a Guest Quarters at 2348 Saddlebrook Lane

Date Created: 11/4/2022
For Questions on this Case Call (972) 771-7745

Legend
FOR 0% (0 Acres)

AGAINST 34.7% (0.782 Acres)

NO RESPONSE 47.1% (4.608 Acres)

ROW 18.1% (1.191 Acres)

Subject Property

55



56



57



58



59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ADJACENT HOUSING ATTRIBUTES 
ADDRESS TYPE YEAR BUILT ACCESSORY BUILDING EXTERIOR MATERIALS 
2312 Saddlebrook Lane Detached Garage 2020 1,836 SF Brick 
2317 Saddlebrook Lane Detached Garage 2005 750 SF Brick 
2325 Saddlebrook Lane Detached Garage 2004 987 SF Brick 
2352 Saddlebrook Lane Detached Garage 2020 625 SF Brick and Siding 
2356 Saddlebrook Lane Detached Garage 2002 1,100 SF Brick and Siding 
2364 Saddlebrook Lane Detached Garage 2007 1,860 SF Brick 
2365 Saddlebrook Lane Detached Garage 2003 840 SF Brick  
2369 Saddlebrook Lane Detached Garage 2018 720 SF Brick 
2385 Saddlebrook Lane Detached Garage 2019 1,300 SF Brick 

AVERAGE: 1,113 SF  
    

60

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


  
Address: 2312 Saddlebrook Lane 
 

 
Address: 2317 Saddlebrook Lane 
 

 
Address: 2325 Saddlebrook Lane 

61

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


  
Address: 2352 Saddlebrook Lane 
 

 
Address: 2356 Saddlebrook Lane 
 

  
Address: 2364 Saddlebrook Lane 
 

62

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


 
Address: 2365 Saddlebrook Lane 
 

 
Address: 2369 Saddlebrook Lane 
  

 
Address: 2385 Saddlebrook Lane 

63

mailto:PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM


CITY OF ROCKWALL 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-2XX 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY 
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR 
GUEST QUARTERS/SECONDARY LIVING QUARTERS AND 
DETACHED GARAGE ON A ONE (1) ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, 
IDENTIFIED AS LOT 13, BLOCK A, SADDLEBROOK ESTATES #2 
ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Bryan Cook for the approval of a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage to allow for the 
construction of an Accessory Building on a one (1) acre parcel of land being identified as Lot 13, 
Block A, Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned 
Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 2348 Saddlebrook Lane, and being more 
specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after shall be 
referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 

SECTION 1.  That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) for Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage to allow for 
the construction of an Accessory Building in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 

SECTION 2.  That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth 
in Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards; Subsection 03.06, Single-Family 16 
(SF-16) District; and Subsection 07.04, Accessory Structure Development Standards, of Article 
05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-
02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

12
.0

5.
20

22

64



conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the construction of a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit 
and Detached Garage on the Subject Property and conformance to these operational conditions 
is required for continued operation: 
 
(1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Site Plan as depicted 

in Exhibit ‘B’ of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance. 
 
(2) The construction of a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage on the 

Subject Property shall generally conform to the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of 
the Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance. 

 
(3) The Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage shall not exceed a 

maximum size of 1,560 SF. 
 
(4) The Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage shall include a paved 

driveway to the structure.  
 
(5) The applicant is to remove the existing 128 SF accessory structure.  
 
(6) The maximum height of the Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit and Detached Garage shall 

not exceed a total height of 15-feet as measured to midpoint of the pitched roof. 
 
(7) The Guest Quarters and Detached Garage shall not be sold or conveyed separately from the 

single-family home without meeting the requirements of the zoning district and subdivision 
ordinance. 

 
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor or property owner operating under 

the guidelines of this ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth 
herein and outlined in the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) 
initiate proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 
02.02(F), Revocation, of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 4.  That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5.  Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

12
.0

5.
20

22

65



to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6.  If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 5TH DAY OF DECEMBER, 2022. 
 
 
 
     

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  December 5, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: December 19, 2022 
 
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

12
.0

5.
20

22

66



Address: 2348 Saddlebrook Lane 
Legal Description: Lot 13, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition 
 

  

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

12
.0

5.
20

22

67



  
 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

12
.0

5.
20

22

68



 

D
R

A
FT

  

O
R

D
IN

A
N

C
E 

12
.0

5.
20

22

69



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: December 5, 2022

SUBJECT: Z2019-027; EXTENSION OF A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR BIG-
TEX TRAILERS

Attachments
Memorandum
Location Map
Case Memo from Case No. Z2019-027
Ordinance No. 20-01

Summary/Background Information
Discuss and consider a request by Raymond Jowers of Jowers, Inc. for the extension of
Ordinance No. 20-01 (S-212) allowing outside storage in conjunction with an existing trailer and
parts sales and service facility (Big-Tex Trailers) on a 4.4317-acre tract of land identified as
Tract 22-01 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District,
addressed as 2260 E. IH-30, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the applicant's
request to extend SUP No. S-212.

70



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: December 5, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Z2019-027; Extension of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Big-Tex Trailers 
 
 

On February 3, 2020, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 20-01 (S-212) allowing outside storage of trailers for Big-Tex 
Trailers on the subject property at 2260 E. IH-30.  This Specific Use Permit (SUP) was an extension of a previously granted 
SUP that was originally adopted on August 4, 2008 (i.e. Case No. Z2008-014; Ordinance No. 08-38; S-056), extended on April 
1, 2011 and April 7, 2014, and amended on February 14, 2017 (i.e. Case No. Z2017-008; Ordinance No. 17-20; S-164) [see 
the case memo for Case Z2019-027 in the attached packet for a complete history of the subject property).  As with the 
previous ordinances, Ordinance No. 20-01 included an operational condition that stated the following: 
 
The Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be valid for a period of three (3) years from the date of the approval of this ordinance.  If 
an extension of the SUP is necessary, the owner shall submit a request in writing to staff no less than 90 days prior to the 
expiration of the SUP.  Upon receipt of the request, the City Council shall review the SUP and determine if an extension of the 
SUP is permitted based on the development of FM-549 and the IH-30 overpass construction and/or other development activity 
in the area. 
 
In accordance with this operational condition, the property owner -- Raymond Jowers of Jowers, Inc. -- submitted a 
development application and letter requesting to extend the Specific Use Permit (SUP) on October 28, 2022.  Based on this 
request, staff is bringing the case forward to the City Council for consideration of an extension.  Staff should note that there 
are currently three (3) projects that have been approved on adjacent properties in the area.  These include: [1] a sports 
complex (i.e. Fit Sport Life), which is currently under construction; [2] a Golf Driving Range (i.e. the Texas Wedge), which was 
granted a Specific Use Permit (SUP) on October 3, 2022; and [3] two (2) Warehouse/Distribution Facilities off Data Drive, 
which are currently nearing completion of civil engineering plans.  In addition, since Ordinance No. 20-01 was approved, the 
FM-549 overpass construction was completed and the City has completed the utility relocations for the IH-30 improvements.  
The IH-30 project was also let on November 2, 2022.  For the City Council’s reference, staff has included a map showing the 
subject property in relation to the location of each of these projects.  Should the City Council choose to grant the extension of 
the Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a period not to exceed three (3) years, no additional approvals or process will be necessary.  
If the City Council chooses to extend the Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a period in excess of three (3) years, staff will be 
required to advertise the case in accordance with the requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC) and bring a 
revised ordinance forward to the Planning and Zoning and City Council for public hearing and action.  If the City Council 
chooses not to grant the extension request, the Specific Use Permit (SUP) will expire in accordance with the operational 
conditions contained in Ordinance No. 20-01, and all outside storage activities on the site will be required to cease.  Should 
the City Council have any questions concerning this request, staff and the applicant will be available at the December 5, 2022 
City Council meeting. 

71



!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

!

BIG TEX
TRAILER WORLD

2260 E. I-30

TEXAS
WEDGE

(SUP APPROVED)

FIT SPORT LIFE
PHASE 1

(UNDER CONST.)

SEEFRIED ROCKWALL
SPEC WAREHOUSES

(UNDER CONST.)

FIT SPORT LIFE
(OVERALL CONCEPT AREA)

Z2020-015

STREAM REALTY
WAREHOUSE

LOLLICUP /
ATOSA

PRATT
INDUSTRIES

TECHNOLOGY PARK
PHASE 5

ROCKWALL 549
DEVELOPMENT AND

JUSTIN RD EXTENSION

FM 3549 / STODGHILL RD
RECONSTRUCTION

(COMPLETE)

REGIONAL
DETENTION POND

TXDOT  IH30
RECONSTRUCTION
(STARTING SOON)

CITY OF FATE
CITY OF ROCKWALL

CITY OF FATE
CITY OF ROCKWALL

3986

2401
2365

2425

2413

2315

2335

2415

291

121

123

136

123

142

126

127

134

119

117

122

132

125

124

138

120

140
116

848
831 844

855

867

851
864

840836

860

848

861

847

835

847
837

860
842

863
2387

2399

1997

1997 2260

2024

3908

3920

1960

1433

1990

3000

2901

2900

1970

2001

1992

1900

2000

3201 3201

1201

1351

3101

1220

1280

VAUGHN DR

IVE
Y L

N

FIT SPORT LIFE BLVD

CAPITA
L BLVD

ST
OD

GH
ILL

RD

LILAC LNROSE LN

WESTMINSTER DR

E INTERSTATE 30

CO
RP

OR
AT

E C
RO

SS
IN

G

JUSTIN RD

DA
TA

 D
R

CA
RR

IN
GT

ON
 D

R

§̈¦30
"3549

The data represented on this map was obtained with the
best methods available. Data is supplied from various sources
and accuracy may  be out of the City  of Rockwall’s control.
The verification of accuracy  and / or content lies entirely  with
the end user. The City  of Rockwall does not guarantee the
accuracy of contained information. All Information is provided
‘As Is’ with no warranty being made, either expressed or implied.I 0 300150 Feet

Date: 11/22/2022

SEC INTERSTATE 30 &
CORPORATE CROSSING

City of
Rockwall

Subject Property

Parcels

City Limits

ROCKWALLTECHNOLOGY PARK

72



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL

CITY OF ROCKWALL
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO
PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM

TO: Mayor and City Council
DATE: January 21, 2020
APPLICANT: Raymond Jowers; Jowers; Inc.

CASE NUMBER: Z2019-027; SUP for Big Tex Trailers

SUMMARY

Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Raymond Jowers of Jowers, Inc. for the 
approval of an extension of Ordinance No. 17-20 (SUP No. S-164) granting a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) allowing outside storage adjacent to IH-30 on a 4.4317-acre tract of land identified as Tract 22-
01 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light 
Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, addressed as 2260 E. IH-
30, and take any action necessary.

BACKGROUND

The western portion of the subject property was annexed in 1985 [Ordinance No. 85-69].  
Subsequently, the eastern portion of the subject property was annexed in 1997 [Ordinance No. 97-14].  
On July 6, 1998, the City Council approved a request [Case No. PZ1998-019; Ordinance No. 98-23] for 
a change in zoning from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Highway Commercial (HWY-C) District on the 
subject property. On February 1, 1999, a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) was issued [CO-1131] to 
McGuire & Associates, Inc. for a truck driving school on the property.  On February 22, 2001, the 
applicant submitted a request [Case No. PZ2001-028] on behalf of Mike Fredricks of Pleasant Homes 
for approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a manufactured home retail sales center in a 
Highway Commercial (HWY-C) District; however, the request was withdrawn by the applicant on March 
12, 2001.  On August 6, 2001, the City Council approved a request [Case No. PZ2001-04; Ordinance 
No 01-35; CUP No. 195] for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow a minor automotive repair facility 
(i.e. Heintschel Truck Tire Center) in a Highway Commercial (HWY-C) District.  On February 28, 2002 a 
Certificate of Occupancy (CO) was issued [CO-1797] to Heinschel Tire & Service.  On June 7, 2004, 
the City Council approved a City-initiated request [Case No. Z2004-006; Ordinance No. 04-38], 
establishing the Unified Development Code (UDC), which replaced the Comprehensive Zoning 
Ordinance [Ordinance No. 83-23].  Specifically, the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 
04-38] removed the Highway Commercial (HWY-C) District from the City’s zoning districts re-classified 
the zoning of the subject property to Light Industrial (LI) District.  This ordinance also replaced 
Conditional Use Permits (CUP’s) with Specific Use Permits (SUP’s) and established the development 
standards for certain overlay districts (i.e. the IH-30 Overlay [IH-30 OV] District) within the City.  

On August 4, 2008, the City Council approved a request [Case No. Z2008-014] for approval of a 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) [Ordinance No. 08-38; SUP No. S-056] to allow a recreational vehicle “RV” 
sales and service facility in a Light Industrial (LI) District.  At that time, a condition of approval stated 
that the Specific Use Permit (SUP) would be valid for a period of three (3) years, commencing on the 
date a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) was issued for the use; however, the SUP ordinance permitted 
the owner to petition the City Council for an extension of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) for 90-days 
prior to the date of expiration.  The intent was to allow the City Council to examine the status of the FM-
549 overpass construction and/or development activity in the area to determine if an extension to the 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) is warranted.  

73



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL

On September 16, 2008, a Certificate of Occupancy (CO) [CO2008-0217] was issued to Walkabout RV, 
LLC and when the business owner changed, a new Certificate of Occupancy (CO) [CO2009-0100] was 
issued to Big-Tex Trailers (i.e. the current occupant).  On April 1, 2011, the applicant submitted a 
request for an extension to the Specific Use Permit (SUP), which was granted by the City Council 
[Ordinance No. 08-38; SUP No. S-056] on April 18, 2011.  Subsequently, the City Council approved the 
second extension of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) [Ordinance No. 08-38; SUP No. S-056] on April 7, 
2014.  On February 14, 2017, the applicant submitted a third request [Case No. Z2017-008] for 
extension of the Specific Use Permit (SUP).  In response to this, the City Council requested that the 
applicant amend the Specific Use Permit (SUP) from recreational vehicle (RV) sales and service facility 
to outside storage to reflect the changes in use of the property.  Subsequently, on April 17, 2017 the 
City Council rescinded Ordinance No. 08-38; SUP No. S-056 and approved Ordinance No. 17-20; SUP 
No. S-164, allowing outside storage in a Light Industrial (LI) District.  A condition of approval stated that 
the SUP ordinance would expire three (3) years from date of approval (i.e. April 17, 2020) and 
permitted the applicant to request an extension to the Specific Use Permit (SUP) no less than 90-days 
prior to the date of expiration.  

PURPOSE

The applicant has submitted a request for an extension to the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance 
with Ordinance No. 17-20; SUP No. S-164.  The applicant has stated that the purpose of this request is 
to permit the continued operation of the existing recreational vehicle (RV) sales and service facility (i.e. 
Big-Tex Trailers) on the subject property.  

ADJACENT LAND USES AND ACCESS

The subject property is located at 2260 E. IH-30.  The land uses adjacent to the subject property are as 
follows:

North: Directly north of the subject property is IH-30, which is identified by a TxDOT6D (Texas 
Department of Transportation, principle arterial, six [6]-lane, divided roadway) on the City’s 
Master Thoroughfare Plan.  Beyond this, there is a large vacant tract of land that is zoned 
Commercial (C) District and a recreational vehicle (RV) dealership (i.e. Happy Trails, USA 
RV Supercenter) that is not located within the city limits of Rockwall.

 South: Directly south of the subject property, there is a large vacant tract of land followed by a light-
industrial facility (i.e. Pratt Industries).  Adjacent to Pratt Industries, there is a light industrial 
facility (i.e. Lollicup, USA) that is currently under construction.  Following this is Discovery 
Boulevard, which is identified as a M4U (major collector, four [4]-lane, undivided roadway) on 
the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan.  Beyond this, there is a light-industrial facility (i.e. Bimbo 
Bakery).  These areas are zoned Commercial and Light Industrial (LI) District. 

East: Directly east of the subject property, there is a vacant tract of land and a minor automotive 
repair garage in conjunction with a truck rental facility (i.e. GearHeads Hot Rod Garage/U-
Haul) that are zoned Light-Industrial (LI) District. Following this there is a single-family 
residential subdivision that is not located within the city limits of Rockwall.

West: Directly west of the subject property, there area several large vacant tracts of land followed 
by Corporate Crossing, which is identified as a TxDOT4D (Texas Department of 
Transportation, principle arterial, four [4]-lane, divided roadway) on the City’s Master 
Thoroughfare Plan.  Following this, there is a truck stop with gasoline sales and accessory 
services (i.e. Love’s Country Stores).  These areas are zoned Commercial (C) and Light 
Industrial (LI) District.  

74



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 3 CITY OF ROCKWALL

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE REQUEST

The applicant is requesting approval of an extension to a Specific Use Permit (SUP) [Ordinance No. 17-
20; SUP No. S-164] to allow outside storage on a property adjacent to IH-30 and zoned Light Industrial 
(LI) District.  Currently, the subject property is occupied with an existing recreational vehicle (RV) sales 
and service facility (i.e. Big Tex Trailers), which has been in operation at this location since 2009 
[CO2009-0100].  The main structure is approximately 8,080 SF, is constructed of a combination of 
metal and stone, and -- according to the Rockwall County Appraisal District (RCA) -- was constructed in 
1985. The existing trailers are stored outdoors and are partially screened with a combination of a chain-
link fence and shrubs.  According to the applicant, there have been no operational changes since the 
approval of Ordinance No. 17-20; SUP No. S-156 and the intent is for the facility to continue to operate 
in the same manner.  

INFRASTRUCTURE

In accordance to the existing Specific Use Permit (SUP) [Ordinance No. 07-20; SUP No. S-164], the 
City Council approval of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) includes a temporary waiver to certain 
engineering and fire department standards, including but not limited to, concrete paving requirements 
and the extension of a 12-inch water line from FM-549.  Future development of the property shall be 
subject to the engineering and fire department standards in effect at the time of development.  In this 
case, the applicant is proposing to continue the existing land use on the property and has not indicated 
any imminent development of the subject property.  As a result, the existing temporary waiver to certain 
engineering and fire department standards has been included as a condition of approval in this case 
memo and the attached draft ordinance.  Staff should note, approval of this condition is a discretionary 
decision for the City Council, pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission.  

CONFORMANCE WITH THE CITY’S CODES

According to Subsection 2, Outside Storage and/or Outside Display, of Subsection J, Wholesale, 
Distribution, and Storage Land Uses, of Subsection 2.03, Conditional Land Use Standards, of Section 
2, Conditional Land Use Standards and Definitions, of Article IV, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), no outside storage is allowing in any zoning district adjacent to IH-30 with 
the exception of properties that are zoned Light Industrial (LI) District.  The Unified Development Code 
(UDC) gives the City Council the ability to consider a Specific Use Permit (SUP) on a case-by-case 
basis to allow outside storage and/or display as an accessory use for properties located adjacent to IH-
30 and zoned Light-Industrial (LI) District.  In this case, since no changes are being proposed, the 
existing recreational vehicle (RV) sales and service facility (i.e. Big Tex Trailers) appears to be in 
conformance with conditional land use standards as stipulated in the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 04-38].

STAFF ANALYSIS

When examining the applicant’s request, staff should point out that the current facility has been in 
operation since 2009 (i.e. approximately 11 years).   At the time Ordinance No. 08-38; SUP No. S-156 
was approved, it appears that a majority of the surrounding properties were either undeveloped or not 
within the city limits of Rockwall.  The construction of the FM-549 overpass was anticipated to begin 
between February and July of 2010 (i.e. within two [2] years of approval of the SUP) and would take 
approximately 18-24 months to complete.  At that time, the City Council expressed an interest for the 
applicant to limit the leasing of the property to Big-Tex Trailers for a period of less than three (3) years. 
This appears to correspond to the anticipated completion date of the proposed overpass construction 
and the City Council’s expectation that the area would re-develop at that time.   With no additional 
development taking place during that time, it seems that subsequent extensions of the Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) were granted by the City Council.  The construction of the FM-549 overpass was delayed 
and did not start until 2017 (i.e. approximately seven [7] years after the anticipated start date) and was 
completed in 2019.  Other development since the previous extension of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) 

75



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 4 CITY OF ROCKWALL

includes the construction of Pratt Industries, Lollicup USA, and other properties within the Rockwall 
Technology Park.  Staff should point out that the screening standards that were in effect at the time that 
Ordinance No.’s 08-38 and 17-20 were approved have been amended.  Should this request be 
approved, staff has recommended to the applicant that the current screening requirements (i.e. a 
landscape buffer consisting of a berm and a combination of a wrought-iron fence, canopy trees, accent 
trees, and shrubs) be met adjacent to IH-30.  This will bring the property further into conformance with 
the landscape standards in the Unified Development Code (UDC) and has been made a condition of 
approval in the draft ordinance.  Staff should note, although approval of this request does not appear to 
negatively impact the subject property or the adjacent properties, this is a discretionary decision for the 
City Council pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission

NOTIFICATIONS

On December 18, 2019, staff notified four (4) property owners and occupants within 500-feet of the 
subject property.  There are no Homeowner’s Associations (HOA’s)/Neighborhood Associations within 
1,500-feet of the subject property and are participating in the Neighborhood Notification Program.  At 
the time this report was written, staff had not received any notices concerning this request.  

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL

If the City Council chooses to approve the applicant’s request then staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval:

(1) The Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be valid for a period of three (3) years from the date of the 
approval of this ordinance.  If an extension of the SUP is necessary, the owner shall submit a 
request in writing to staff no less than 90 days prior to the expiration of the SUP.  Upon receipt of 
the request, the City Council shall review the SUP and determine if an extension of the SUP is 
permitted based on the development of FM-549 and the IH-30 overpass construction and/or other 
development activity in the area. 

(2) All outside display and outside storage of trailers shall generally conform to the concept plan 
depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of the attached ordinance, which shall be incorporated herein by reference. 

(3) The outside display and outside storage of semi-trailers and tractor-trailers shall be prohibited.

(4) That the subject property shall be brought into conformance to the screening requirements 
stipulated in the Unified Development Code (UDC) prior to subsequent extension requests for the 
SUP. 

(5) City Council approval of the SUP includes a temporary waiver to certain engineering and fire 
department standards, including but not limited to, concrete paving requirements and the extension 
of a 12-inch water line from FM-549. Future development of the subject property will be subject to 
the Engineering and Fire Department standards in effect at the time of development.

(6) In the event that the development expands the existing structure or adds additional buildings, the 
development will be subject to meet the requirements for fire protection. 

(7) Any construction resulting from the approval of this zoning change shall conform to the 
requirements set forth by the Unified Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code 
(IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted engineering and fire codes and 
with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state and 
federal government.

76



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 5 CITY OF ROCKWALL

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

On January 14, 2020, the Planning and Zoning Commission’s motion to recommend approval of the 
applicant’s request with staff’s conditions of approval passed by a vote of 6-0 with Commissioner Logan 
absent.  

77



CITY OF ROCKWALL

ORDINANCE NO. 20-01

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-212

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED

DEVELOPMENT CODE ( UDC) [ ORDINANCE NO. 04-381 OF
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY TEXAS, AS

PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE

PERMIT ( SUP) TO ALLOW OUTSIDE STORAGE IN A LIGHT

INDUSTRIAL ( LI) DISTRICT WITHIN THE IH -30 OVERLAY ( I1- 1- 30

OV) DISTRICT ON A 4. 4317 -ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, 

IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 22- 01 OF THE R. IRVINE SURVEY, 

ABSTRACT NO. 120, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL

COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DEPICTED IN

EXHIBIT ' A' OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL

CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO

EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($ 2, 000.00) 

FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY

CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Raymond Jowers for the approval of a Specific
Use Permit ( SUP) to allow outside storage on a 4. 4317 -acre parcel of land being described as
Tract 22- 01, Abstract No. 120, Cityof Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial ( LI) 
District, situated within the IH -30 Overlay ( I1- 1- 30 OV) District, addressed as 2260 E. IH -30 and
being more specifically depicted in Exhibit ` A' of this ordinance, which herein after shall be

referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the Cityof Rockwall and the governing bodyof
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code ( UDC) 

Ordinance No. 04- 38] and Ordinance No. 17-20 of the City of Rockwall should be amended as
follows: 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 

SECTION 1. That the approval of this ordinance shall supersede all requirements stipulated in

Ordinance No' s. 17-20; 

SECTION 2. That the Unified Development Code ( UDC) [ Ordinance No. 04- 38] of the City of
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific
Use Permit ( SUP) allowing outside storage as stipulated by Section 1, Land Use Schedule, of
Article IV, Permissible Uses, the Unified Development Code ( UDC) [ Ordinance No. 04- 38] on the

Subject Property, and, 

SECTION 3. That the Specific Use Permit ( SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in

22019- 027: SUP for Outside Storage Page 11 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 20- 01; SUP # S- 212

78



Section 5, Industrial Districts, and Subsection 6. 06, IH -30 Overlay ( IH -30 OV) District, of Article
V, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code ( UDC) [ Ordinance No. 04- 

38] as heretofore amended and as may be amended in the future, and shall be subject to the
following conditions: 

3. 1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS

The following conditions pertain to the operation of outside storage on the Subject Property and
conformance to these conditions are required for continued operations: 

1) The Specific Use Permit ( SUP) shall be valid for a period of three ( 3) years from the date of

the approval of this ordinance. If an extension of the SUP is necessary, the owner shall submit
a request in writing to staff no less than 90 days prior to the expiration of the SUP. Upon

receipt of the request, the City Council shall review the SUP and determine if an extension of
the SUP is permitted based on the development of FM -549 and the IH -30 overpass

construction and/ or other development activity in the area. 

2) All outside display and outside storage of trailers shall generally conform to the concept plan
depicted in Exhibit `B' of this ordinance, which shall be incorporated herein by reference. 

3) The outside display and outside storage of semi -trailers and tractor -trailers shall be prohibited. 

4) City Council approval of the SUP includes a temporary waiver to certain engineering and fire
department standards, including but not limited to, concrete paving requirements and the
extension of a 12 -inch water line from FM -549. Future development of the subject property
will be subject to the Engineering and Fire Department standards in effect at the time of
development. 

5) In the event that the development expands the existing structure or adds additional buildings, 
the development will be subject to meet the requirements for fire protection. 

3. 2 COMPLIANCE

Approval of this ordinance — in accordance with Subsection 2. 05, City CouncilAction, ofArticle X1, 
Zoning Related Applications, of the Unified Development Code ( UDC) -- will require compliance

to the following: 

1) Upon obtaining approval of this Specific Use Permit ( SUP), should the property owner fail to
meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outline in the Unified

Development Code ( UDC), the City Council may ( after proper notice) initiate proceedings to
revoke the Specific Use Permit ( SUP) in accordance with Section 2.02. D( 3) of Article XI, 

Zoning Related Applications, of the Unified Development Code ( UDC). 

SECTION 4. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning
described herein. 

SECTION 5. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

SECTION 6. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($ 2, 000. 00) for each offence and each and

22019- 027: SUP for Outside Storage Page 12 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 20- 01; SUP # S- 212

79



every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION 7. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of

any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full

force and effect. 

SECTION 8. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF T E CITY F CKWALL, TEXAS, 

THIS THE 3RD DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2020. 

Jim Pruitt, ayor

ATTEST: 

Kris Col , City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

City Attorney

1St

Reading: January 21, 2020

2nd

Reading: Februa 3 2020

Z2019- 027: SUP for Outside Storage Page 13 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 20- 01; SUP # S- 212

80



Exhibit `A' 

Zoning Exhibit

Address: 2260 E. IH 30

Legal Description: Tract 22- 01 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120

22019- 027: SUP for Outside Storage Page 14 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 20- 01; SUP # S- 212

81



Exhibit `B' 

Concept Plan

Moo

IV 0

Z2019- 027: SUP for Outside Storage Page 15 City of Rockwall, Texas
Ordinance No. 20- 01; SUP # S- 212

82



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: December 5, 2022

SUBJECT:
MIS2022-023; EXCEPTION TO THE STREET IMPROVEMENT
REQUIREMENTS OF CHAPTER 38, SUBDIVISIONS, OF THE MUNICIPAL
CODE OF ORDINANCES FOR THE CHILDRENÂ€™S ADVOCACY
CENTER

Attachments
Memorandum
Location Map
Applicant's Letter
Concept Plan

Summary/Background Information
Discuss and consider a request by Patricia Mejia on behalf of the Children’s Advocacy Center
of Rockwall County for the approval of a Miscellaneous Case for an Exception to the Street
Improvement Requirements contained in the Municipal Code of Ordinances for a 7.497-acre
tract of land identified as Tract 68 of the R. Ballard Survey, Abstract No. 29, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, generally located northwest of the
curve connecting Airport Road and E. Washington Street, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the applicant's
request for an exception to the street improvement requirements of the Municipal Code of
Ordinances.

83



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: December 5, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: MIS2022-023; Exception to the Street Improvement Requirements of Chapter 38, Subdivisions, of 
the Municipal Code of Ordinances for the Children’s Advocacy Center 

 
 

On November 17, 2022, City staff met with representatives of the Children’s Advocacy Center of Rockwall County (CACRC) to 
discuss the potential purchase of land for the purpose of constructing a new Social Service Provider facility.  The subject 
property is directly south of the CACRC’s current facility, which is located in the Soroptimist House at 1350 E. Washington 
Street.  The 7.497-acre vacant tract of land (i.e. Tract 68 of the R. Ballard Survey, Abstract No. 29) is zoned Light Industrial 
(LI) District and is situated at the northwest corner of the curve that connects Airport Road to E. Washington Street.   
 
At the meeting with City staff, the CACRC provided a concept plan that showed the potential construction of a 31,500 SF 
facility on the subject property.  Based on the concept plan, the proposed facility would only be accessible from a drive 
approach off of a private drive that runs adjacent to the southern property line.  The purpose of providing limited access for 
this site is to ensure that the site has a controlled/secured access point that is not easily accessible.  This private drive 
approach is the old alignment of Aluminum Plant Road, which was purchased by SPR Packaging as part of their expansion in 
2016.  The representatives of the CACRC indicated that they have worked with representatives of SPR Packaging, and based 
on the existing public access easement can access the site as depicted on the concept plan.  Also, indicated at this meeting 
was the need to dedicate the right-of-way for E. Washington Street, which would need to be widened in accordance with the 
requirements of Section 38-19, Street Improvements and Oversizing, of Chapter 38, Street Improvements and Oversizing, of 
the Municipal Code of Ordinances.  These requirements state “(w)hen a proposed subdivision of land abuts on both sides of 
an existing substandard road, or one side of said road, being substandard according to the then existing City standard 
specifications, the developer shall be required to improve the existing road, including sidewalks, to bring the same to City 
standards, or to replace it with a standard City street at no cost to the City …”  E. Washington Street is identified as a M4U 
(i.e. major collector, four [4] lane, undivided roadway) on the City’s Master Thoroughfare Plan, which consists of 65-feet of 
right-of-way with a 45-foot back-to-back concrete street.  This means that if the CACRC develops the property, they would 
need to ensure that 32½-feet from the center line of the roadway is dedicated, and a minimum of a 24-foot concrete street 
section with five (5) foot sidewalks be constructed in the total right-of-way of the roadway. 
 
Based on this requirement, the President and CEO of the CACRC -- Patricia Mejia -- has submitted a letter requesting an 
exception to the construction of the roadway and sidewalks for E. Washington Street.  The letter does indicate a willingness to 
provide the necessary right-of-way for the future roadway and is only requesting the exception for the street improvements.  
As stated in the letter, this request is predicated on the CACRC’s plans to not take access off of E. Washington Street, and to 
reduce the costs associated with this street on the Social Service Provider.  Based on Section 38-19 of the Municipal Code of 
Ordinances, the City Council has the ability to grant an exception to the street improvement requirements stating “(w)here in 
its judgement the public convenience and welfare will be substantially served and the appropriate use of the neighboring 
property will not be substantially injured upon recommendation by the City Planning and Zoning Commission, the City Council 
may, in specific cases, at a regular meeting of the City Council, and subject to appropriate conditions and safeguards, 
authorize special exceptions to these regulations in order to permit reasonable to these regulations in order to permit 
reasonable development and improvement of property where the literal enforcement of these regulations would result in an 
unnecessary hardship.”  In this case, granting this exception does not appear to change the essential character of the area 
nor would it substantially injure any adjacent properties; however, this request is a discretionary decision for the City Council 
pending a recommendation from the Planning and Zoning Commission. Based on this, staff is brought the case forward to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission on November 30, 2022 for a recommendation, and after deliberation the Planning and 

84



Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the exception by a vote of 6-0 (with Commissioner 
Hustings absent). 
 
Staff should note that these types of requests are typically considered with the submission of a subdivision plat; however, 
since the CACRC is in its due diligence period and this requirement could affect the feasibility of this project, staff considered it 
prudent to bring this forward as a miscellaneous request.  In the attached packet staff has included a location map, the 
applicant’s letter, and the proposed concept plan.  Should the City Council have any questions, staff and the applicant will be 
available at the December 5, 2022 City Council meeting. 
 

85



86



 

November 18, 2022 

 

  Ryan Miller, Director of Planning 

City of Rockwall 

                        385 S. Goliad St 

                        Rockwall, TX  75087 

 

                        Dear Mr. Miller: 

 

            Our sincere thanks to you, your staff, and all City departments that met with the 

Children’s Advocacy Center for Rockwall County (CACRC) Planning Committee 

yesterday. 

 

The CACRC offers hope and healing for children and families affected by abuse, 

trauma, and violence, and advocates for the prevention of child abuse through 

education and training.  As the population of Rockwall County continues to grow, 

the CACRC experiences an increase in the number of children and families 

served.  In an effort to continue to appropriately serve families and children that 

have been impacted by abuse or witness to a violent crime, CACRC must grow.  

  

CACRC is exploring the feasibility of a potential purchase of a parcel of land 

adjacent to our existing location.  Given information obtained in surveys, 

engineering studies, and feedback received from the City staff, we would request 

an agenda item on the Council Agenda as soon as possible.  The purpose of the 

agenda item will be to request a variance from the reconstruction of portions of  

E. Washington Street.  As you are aware, especially in light of the comments 

from the Police Department yesterday, security for this site is of utmost concern.  

Access to the property would need to be severely restricted due to the nature of 

the services being provided for the children of our county. There will be no 

access to this property from E. Washington St and only one entrance off the SPR 

Public Access Road. We would request a variance from having to rebuild the 

pavement and sidewalks on E. Washington St.  This in no way will affect the 

right-of-way dedication that the CACRC has agreed to along that roadway.   

 

We are grateful for your assistance in this matter and appreciate the expertise of 

your team.  This project will only happen if we can bring our community together 

in support.    

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

Patricia E. Mejia 
 
Patricia E. Mejia, MBA, EdD (ABD) 
President & CEO 

87



88

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 85°23'03''W  409.98'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(CONTROLLING BEARING LINE)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 6°45'54''W  737.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 85°52'24''E  178.87'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 0°50'32''W  657.81'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WM

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
FH

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
MP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 89°43'57''E  309.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/8" IRF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
HEADWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL DRIVEWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADJACENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM PLANT ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.093 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOROPTIMIST ROCKWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHILDRENS HOME

AutoCAD SHX Text
CABINET B, SLIDE 379

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENCROACHING

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEGINNING

AutoCAD SHX Text
E. WASHINGTON STREET

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.156 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
CEMETERY TRACT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSPOINT CHURCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 17°28'41''E

AutoCAD SHX Text
59.04'

AutoCAD SHX Text
12.833 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOMMY A. SINGLETON, TRUSTEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARL P. MOTHERAL, TRUSTEE

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL. 1325, PG. 0005

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W. DEED IN VOL. 67, P. 116

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W. BY PRESCRIPTIVE RIGHT NOT OF RECORD

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.P. & L. CO. ESMT. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VOL. 54, PG. 75

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=   V

AutoCAD SHX Text
1"=40' H

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
22031 SITE PL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOV 17,2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.L.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.L.D.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ROCKWALL ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
THE SEAL APPEARING ON THIS DOCUMENT WAS AUTHORIZED BY  W.L. DOUPHRATE II TEXAS P.E.  NO. 60102, F-886, ON  DATE: NOV 17, 2022.

AutoCAD SHX Text
60102

AutoCAD SHX Text
W.L. DOUPHRATE II

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ENGINEERING  PROJECT MANAGEMENT  SURVEYING

AutoCAD SHX Text
& ASSOCIATES, INC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2235 RIDGE RD., # 200  ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75087

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHONE: (972)771-9004 FAX: (972)771-9005

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOUPHRATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCEPT PLAN  CHILDREN'S ADVOCACY CENTER  WASHINGTON STREET ROCKWALL TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ZONE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
31,500 SF BUILDING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHILDREN'S 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADVOCACY CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
29 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
15 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
19 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
12 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
19 SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
106 PARKING SPACES

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETENTION POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' FIRE LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text
24' FIRE LANE



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

October 2022 Monthly  
Report  

 

99



 

 

All Calls By NFIRS Call Type Incident Count
111 Building fire 2
113 Cooking fire, confined to container 1
131 Passenger vehicle fire (cars, pickups, SUV's) 1
142 Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 2
143 Grass fire 1
151 Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 3
154 Dumpster or other outside trash receptacle fire 1
160 Special outside fire, other 1
161 Outside storage fire 1
221 Overpressure rupture of air or gas pipe/pipeline 1
300 Rescue, EMS incident, other 1
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 167
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 24
323 Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 1
324 Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 24
342 Search for person in water 1
365 Watercraft rescue 1
411 Gasoline or other flammable liquid spill 1
412 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 5
442 Overheated motor 1
444 Power line down 3
445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 4
511 Lock-out 2
520 Water problem, other 3
531 Smoke or odor removal 1
550 Public service assistance, other 2
550 Smoke Detector Battery Change/Install 7
555 Defective elevator, no occupants 1
600 Good intent call, other 2
611 Dispatched & canceled en route 20
622 No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 14
651 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 6
700 False alarm or false call, other 2
715 Local alarm system, malicious false alarm 1
730 System malfunction, other 1
731 Sprinkler activation due to malfunction 1
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 2
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 7
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 1
740 Unintentional transmission of alarm, other 1
741 Sprinkler activation, no fire - unintentional 1
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 7
744 Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 2
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 11
746 Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 3
Grand Total 345

100



October 2022 Dispatch to Arrival Analysis 

 

 

 
District

Total Number of 
Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of Calls 
in 5.5 mins or 

Less

Average FD 
Response Time 

Minutes

% in 5.5 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 78 29% 64 0:04:08 82% 90%
District 2 78 29% 65 0:04:25 83% 90%
District 3 24 9% 18 0:04:30 75% 90%
District 4 52 19% 40 0:05:11 77% 90%
District 5 13 5% 4 0:06:56 31% 90%
District 6 3 1% 1 0:04:42 33% 90%
District 7 13 5% 4 0:06:16 31% 90%
District 8 7 3% 2 0:05:50 29% 90%
District 9 0 0% 0 0:00:00 No Calls 90%

Department 268 100% 198 0:04:45 74% 90%

101



October 2022 Travel Times by District 

 

 
District

Total 
Number of 

Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of 
Calls in 4 or 

Less

Average Travel 
Time Minutes

% in 4 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 78 29% 61 0:03:07 78% 90%
District 2 78 29% 62 0:03:28 79% 90%
District 3 24 9% 17 0:03:38 71% 90%
District 4 52 19% 35 0:04:14 67% 90%
District 5 13 5% 3 0:05:50 23% 90%
District 6 3 1% 1 0:04:09 33% 90%
District 7 13 5% 3 0:05:15 23% 90%
District 8 7 3% 1 0:04:58 14% 90%
District 9 0 0% 0 0:00:00 No Calls 90%

Department 268 100% 183 0:03:47 68% 90%

102



Current Month Last Month Same Month Last Year Year To Date Last Year To Date
Total Property Loss: $30,000.00 $32,500.00 $0.00 $1,031,220.00 $243,350.00

Total Content Loss: $25,150.00 $500.00 $0.00 $895,650.00 $96,600.00

Total Property Pre-Incident Value: $10,370,590.00 $1,057,710.00 $0.00 $72,412,910.00 $27,709,429.00

Total Contents Pre-Incident Value $100,000.00 $200,000.00 $0.00 $22,096,975.00 $11,157,699.60

Total Losses: $55,150.00 $33,000.00 $.00 $1,926,870.00 $55,150.00

Total Value: $10,470,590.00 $1,257,710.00 $.00 $94,509,885.00 $38,867,128.60

Page: 1 of 1

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Total Dollar Losses
October 2022

11/04/2022 10:50
rck\dgang

Rockwall Fire Department
ORI Number: TX504    

AllAreas:
AllIncident Type:AllLayer:

Station: All

103



6
5

3
4

2

4

0

2

4

6

8

May-22 June-22 July-22 August-22 September-22 October-22

Inspector Call Outs

94

127

82
103

87 95

12 10 11 14 19
9

0

50

100

150

May-22 June-22 July-22 August-22 September-22 October-22

Plan Reviews & Permits
Plan Reviews Permits

0 0

1

2

1

3

0

1

2

3

4

May-22 June-22 July-22 August-22 September-22 October-22

Fire Investigations

97
129

166

207

130 118

0

50

100

150

200

250

May-22 June-22 July-22 August-22 September-22 October-22

Inspections

Fire Prevention, Education, 
& Investigations Division
Monthly Report
October 2022

104



Monthly Report

Rib Rub Run and Roll
5,000 Attendees

0 2,500 5,000 7,500 10,000

Program Revenue 

HMCC/Pavilions 

The Center 

Jul:
Aug:
Sep:

 

Breakfast with Santa Dec. 10 - The Center 

Daddy Daughter Dance Jan. 21 - The Hilton Bella Harbor

Spring RBSL Registration Open! Online at PLAYROCKWALL.COM

Upcoming:

Halloween Senior Luncheon

October 2022

REVENUE   NUMBERS

60 Attendees

105



PARKS   PROJECT   UPDATE - OCTOBER  2022

Eagle Scout Project at Fire Station #24th Annual Arbor Day

Harry Myers Pickleball Court
Artificial Turf Installation

Pickle Ball Court Cleaning

Other Projects

Memoral Plaque Installation

106



Rockwall Police Department
Monthly Activity Report

ACTIVITY CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH YTD YTD YTD %
OCTOBER SEPTEMBER 2022 2021 CHANGE

Homicide / Manslaughter 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Sexual Assault 0 1 11 16 -31.25%

Robbery 1 3 13 4 225.00%

Aggravated Assault 2 2 26 25 4.00%

Burglary 3 1 29 28 3.57%

Larceny 51 72 582 489 19.02%

Motor Vehicle Theft 3 10 49 43 13.95%

TOTAL PART I 60 89 710 605 17.36%

TOTAL PART II 120 106 1256 1242 1.13%

TOTAL OFFENSES 180 195 1966 1847 6.44%

FAMILY VIOLENCE 8 9 79 97 -18.56%

D.W.I. 11 7 142 170 -16.47%

FELONY 20 23 238 220 8.18%

MISDEMEANOR 65 46 556 476 16.81%

WARRANT ARREST 7 5 70 82 -14.63%

JUVENILE 4 1 64 31 106.45%

TOTAL ARRESTS 96 75 928 809 14.71%

CALLS FOR SERVICE 2165 2101 20096 20668 -2.77%

INJURY 0 2 33 46 -28.26%

NON-INJURY 103 83 772 719 7.37%

FATALITY 1 0 2 1 100.00%

TOTAL 104 85 807 766 5.35%

RESIDENT ALARMS 55 51 463 433 6.93%

BUSINESS ALARMS 157 171 1589 1353 17.44%

TOTAL FALSE ALARMS 212 222 2052 1786 14.89%

Estimated Lost Hours 139.92 146.52 1354.32 1178.76 14.89%

Estimated Cost $3,328.40 $3,485.40 $32,216.40 $28,040.20 14.89%

Number of Cases
Arrests

Arrest Warrants
Search Warrants

Methamphetamine

October-2022

PART 1 OFFENSES

ARRESTS

 DISPATCH

ADDITIONAL STATISTICS

7
0

0
0

 ACCIDENTS

FALSE ALARMS

ROCKWALL NARCOTICS UNIT

Seized
206 grams

107



Rockwall Police Department
Dispatch and Response Times

Average Response Time

Priority 1 Number of Calls 193

Call to Dispatch 0:00:50

Call to Arrival 0:05:54

 % over 7 minutes 30%

Average Response Time

Priority 2 Number of Calls 820

Call to Dispatch 0:02:42

Call to Arrival 0:09:50

 % over 7 minutes 20%

Average Response Time

Priority 3 Number of Calls 75

Call to Dispatch 0:03:49

Call to Arrival 0:10:38

 % over 7 minutes 44%

Average dispatch response time goals are as follows:

Priority 1: 1 Minute

Priority 2: 1 Minute, 30 Seconds

Priority 3: 3 Minutes

October 2022

Police Department

108



General Fund TIF
Sales Tax Sales Tax

Oct-19 1,565,868      24,818         
Nov-19 1,730,541      21,787         
Dec-19 1,547,746      23,781         
Jan-20 1,365,040      26,330         
Feb-20 2,273,520      27,472         
Mar-20 1,458,193      19,955         
Apr-20 1,292,639      15,829         

May-20 1,605,986      17,538         
Jun-20 1,345,598      5,881            
Jul-20 1,376,026      13,529         

Aug-20 1,979,539      17,706         
Sep-20 1,573,352      12,179         
Oct-20 1,558,570      14,888         
Nov-20 1,989,955      15,299         
Dec-20 1,634,280      14,994         
Jan-21 1,718,364      13,341         
Feb-21 2,244,778      14,935         
Mar-21 1,521,031      12,738         
Apr-21 1,952,165      10,954         

May-21 2,651,412      18,252         
Jun-21 2,080,645      27,773         
Jul-21 1,877,982      22,940         

Aug-21 1,930,521      24,860         
Sep-21 1,882,276      27,803         
Oct-21 1,860,016      19,744         
Nov-21 2,317,862      21,385         
Dec-21 1,963,345      23,464         
Jan-22 2,040,002      20,495         
Feb-22 2,664,185      23,976         
Mar-22 1,786,902      21,605         
Apr-22 1,633,850      17,548         

May-22 2,559,349      26,254         
Jun-22 2,050,066      25,127         
Jul-22 2,135,457      29,738         

Aug-22 2,381,510      34,190         
Sep-22 2,092,217      36,105         
Oct-22 1,626,425      25,420         

Notes:

75% of TIF sales tax (city share) is pledged to the TIF

75% of total sales tax collected is deposited to the General Fund each month

Comptroller tracks sales tax generated in the TIF and reports it monthly 

Sales Tax Collections - Rolling 36 Months

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

General Fund Sales Tax

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

 5,000

 15,000

 25,000

 35,000

 45,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

TIF Sales Tax

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

109



Total Gallons Daily Average Maximum Day
Aug-20 590,693,550            19,054,630            22,031,522            
Sep-20 363,112,688            12,103,756            14,870,959            
Oct-20 397,801,934            12,832,320            15,751,199            
Nov-20 295,091,494            9,836,383              11,452,738            
Dec-20 179,571,968            7,371,629              8,653,526               
Jan-21 157,800,928            6,718,182              7,179,987               
Feb-21 199,821,312            8,288,901              17,044,360            
Mar-21 230,130,315            7,423,560              9,739,996               
Apr-21 289,545,756            9,651,525              12,683,656            

May-21 247,421,005            7,981,324              10,400,411            
Jun-21 342,904,230            11,430,141            16,988,604            
Jul-21 446,687,809            14,409,284            17,918,524            

Aug-21 486,443,590            15,691,730            18,928,160            
Sep-21 377,898,464            17,173,544            19,016,086            
Oct-21 293,280,384            11,880,576            15,338,545            
Nov-21 280,398,508            9,346,618              12,584,820            
Dec-21 262,730,021            8,475,163              10,313,293            
Jan-22 245,557,172            7,921,199              10,742,941            
Feb-22 211,955,941            7,569,855              10,394,759            
Mar-22 256,035,618            8,529,214              10,544,988            
Apr-22 281,707,217            9,390,241              11,718,730            

May-22 356,050,664            11,485,506            15,634,756            
Jun-22 496,374,560            16,545,820            21,414,344            
Jul-22 679,705,160            21,925,974            24,474,168            

Aug-22 534,145,350            17,230,494            23,206,750            
Sep-22 434,247,536            14,474,915            17,617,728            
Oct-22 421,229,833            13,588,058            17,692,206            

Source: SCADA Monthly Reports generated at the Water Pump Stations

Monthly Water Consumption - Rolling 27 Months

 100,000,000
 200,000,000
 300,000,000
 400,000,000
 500,000,000
 600,000,000

Au
g-

20

O
ct

-2
0

De
c-

20

Fe
b-

21

Ap
r-

21

Ju
n-

21

Au
g-

21

O
ct

-2
1

De
c-

21

Fe
b-

22

Ap
r-

22

Ju
n-

22

Au
g-

22

O
ct

-2
2

Total Gallons per Month

Total Gallons

 2,000,000
 7,000,000

 12,000,000
 17,000,000
 22,000,000
 27,000,000

Au
g-

20

O
ct

-2
0

De
c-

20

Fe
b-

21

Ap
r-

21

Ju
n-

21

Au
g-

21

O
ct

-2
1

De
c-

21

Fe
b-

22

Ap
r-

22

Ju
n-

22

Au
g-

22

O
ct

-2
2

Average and Max Day

Daily Average Maximum Day

110


	12/05/22 CC Mtg
	 Consider approval of the minutes from the November 21, 2022 regular city council meeting, and take any action necessary.
	 11/21/22 ESC Mins

	 Z2022-047 - Consider a request by Javier Silva and JMS Custom Homes, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from Agricultural (AG) District to a General Retail (GR) District for a 1.837-acre tract of land identified as Tract 6 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, generally located on the east side of FM-1141 south of the intersection of Waters Edge Drive and FM-1141, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ord 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-049 - Consider a request by Deanna Welch-Williams of Sheldon Custom Homes on behalf of Kenneth and Debbie Wade for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill Adjacent to an Established Subdivision for the purpose of constructing a single-family home on a 0.3080-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 6, Block A, Eagle Point Estates Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, addressed as 1505 S. Alamo Street, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ord 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-050 - Consider approval of an ordinance for a Text Amendment to Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] for the purpose of making minor changes to Subsection 06.16, Lake Ray Hubbard Takeline Overlay (TL OV) District, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ord 2nd Reading

	 P2022-057 - Consider a request by Jeff Kilburg of Apex Design Build on behalf of Chad Capps of CMH Real Estate, LLC for the approval of a Replat for Lot 12, Block B, Horizon Ridge Addition being a 1.253-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 5, Block B, Horizon Ridge Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 9 (PD-9) for General Retail (GR) District land uses, situated at the northwest corner of the intersection of Rockwall Parkway and Summer Lee Drive, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Applications
	 Location Map
	 Replat

	 Consider approval of a 12 month service agreement with Fidelis Security in the amount of $48,000 for cybersecurity consulting to be funded by the Information Technology Department Operating Budget, and authorize the City Manager to execute the agreement, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo_IT Director

	 Consider approving and authorizing the City Manager to execute a contract with Riverstone Fence Co. for installation of 800 linear feet of wrought iron perimeter fence at the 66 cemetery in the amount of $44,250.00 to be funded by the Cemetery Fund, and take any action necessary.
	 Z2022-048 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Bryan Cook for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Guest Quarters/Secondary Living Unit/Detached Garage/Carport on a one (1) acre parcel of land identified as Lot 13, Block A, Saddlebrook Estates #2 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 16 (SF-16) District, addressed as 2348 Saddlebrook Lane, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 HOA Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification Map
	 Property Owner Notification List
	 Public Notice
	 Property Owner Notifications
	 For and Against Map
	 Concept Plan
	 Building Elevations
	 Floor Plan
	 Electrical Plan
	 Accessory Structure Analysis
	 Draft Ordinance

	 Z2019-027 - Discuss and consider a request by Raymond Jowers of Jowers, Inc. for the extension of Ordinance No. 20-01 (S-212) allowing outside storage in conjunction with an existing trailer and parts sales and service facility (Big-Tex Trailers) on a 4.4317-acre tract of land identified as Tract 22-01 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, addressed as 2260 E. IH-30, and take any action necessary.
	 Memorandum
	 Location Map
	 Case Memo from Case No. Z2019-027
	 Ordinance No. 20-01

	 MIS2022-023 - Discuss and consider a request by Patricia Mejia on behalf of the Children's Advocacy Center of Rockwall County for the approval of a Miscellaneous Case for an Exception to the Street Improvement Requirements contained in the Municipal Code of Ordinances for a 7.497-acre tract of land identified as Tract 68 of the R. Ballard Survey, Abstract No. 29, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, generally located northwest of the curve connecting Airport Road and E. Washington Street, and take any action necessary.
	 Memorandum
	 Location Map
	 Applicant's Letter
	 Concept Plan

	 Building Inspections Department Monthly Report - October 2022
	 BI MONTHLY REPORT

	 Fire Department Monthly Report - October 2022
	 Rockwall Fire Department - October 2022

	 Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report - October 2022
	 PARD Monthly Report

	 Police Department Monthly Report - October 2022
	 Police Department Monthly Report - October 2022

	 Sales Tax Historical Comparison
	 Report

	 Water Consumption Historical Statistics
	 Report




